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Directors’ Report 
 
The Directors present their annual report on the affairs of the Airtel Networks Limited, together with the 
financial statements and auditor’s report for the year ended 31 December 2024. 
 
1. Legal form 

 The Company is a private limited liability company, which was incorporated on 21 December 2000 as 
Econet Wireless Nigeria Limited.  By Special Resolutions of the Company at General Meetings held on 2 
April 2004 and 10 October 2006, the name of the Company was changed from Econet Wireless Nigeria 
Limited to Vee Networks Limited and from Vee Networks Limited to Celtel Nigeria Limited respectively. 
On 22 September 2010, by another Special Resolution of the Company, the name of the Company was 
changed from Celtel Nigeria Limited to Airtel Networks Limited. 

  
2. Principal activity 

 The principal activity of the Company is the provision of telecommunication services and products using 
its licensed platforms. 

 
3. Result for the year 

 The following is a summary of the Company’s operating results: 
 

 Gross Subscriber Base 

Particulars 
Financial Year 

YoY 
Growth 

2024 2023  

  ’000 ’000 % 

Closing subscriber base  57,683 61,834 (6.71%) 

Gross subscriber connections added during the year 21,256 20,181 5.33% 

Churn during the year 25,407 18,413 37.98% 

 
Active subscribers are determined based on a 90-day revenue generating cycle. 
 

Financial Highlights 

Particulars 
Financial Year YoY 

Growth 2024 2023 
  N’ million N’ million % 
Revenue from operations 1,467,125 1,088,075 34.84% 
Operating profit 439,817 371,976 18.24% 
Finance income 828 1,464 (43.45%) 
Finance costs (340,970) (94,647) 260.25% 
Net Derivative and foreign exchange losses (571,258) (663,593) (13.91%) 
Loss before taxation (471,583) (384,800) 22.55% 
Loss after taxation (322,166) (253,292) 27.19% 
Capex investment at year end (Net Property, Plant and 
equipment) 

708,439 536,840 31.96% 
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Directors’ Report (cont’d) 
 
4. Business review 

 The Company experienced a decrease in its Revenue Earning Customer during the year ended 31 
December 2024 as customer base dropped by 6.7% from 61.83million in 2023 to 57.68 million in 2024. 
Revenue generated in the year increased by 34.8% from N1,088.08 billion in 2023 to N 1,467.13billion 
in 2024. Key drivers of growth continue to be Voice and Data revenue growth, Home Broadband 
expansion and increased uptake in our Enterprise business which all supported us in achieving growth 
in our numbers. Our retail expansion program continues to be the bedrock of our success, as we 
continued the strategic initiatives to improve brand visibility and expand retail footprint with focus on 
excellent service delivery and customer experience. The business currently has a total of Eighty-Two 
(82) showrooms across Nigeria in addition to its dealer empowerment initiatives tagged “Airtel Express 
Shops” (AES), a total of Ninety-five (95) spread across the country. 

 
 
 As part of the strategy to continuously improve customer experience, boost brand affinity drive usage 

and retention in the market, Airtel introduced “Live Limitless” and the Airtel Smart router which provide 

subscribers with fast and affordable internet services riding on the broadband 5G coverage nationwide. 

The Company remains focused on its drive to deepen broadband connectivity across Nigeria through 

its Home Broadband (“HBB”) business segment. The HBB rides on the 5G network and provides access 

to high-speed connectivity to customers through fixed routers and mobile routers (also known as 

“Mifis”). 

 
 Airtel Africa in 2024 won two major awards at the inaugural edition of the ICAN-NGX Awards. The 

company was named Most Outstanding in Financial Reporting while also winning the overall gold across 

all categories. Organised by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria (ICAN) in collaboration 

with NGX Regulation Limited, the awards recognized excellence in corporate reporting among the top 

30 most capitalised companies listed on the Nigerian Stock Exchange for the 2024 financial reporting 

year. 
 
 Airtel Employee Volunteer Scheme (EVS) executed a weeklong sustainability education and mobilisation 

programme during the week of World Environment Day 2024. This programme eventually led to the 

award-winning Baadun Beach Clean-Up Exercise at Baadun Beach Lagos. For the initiative, the Lagos 

Public Relations Industry Gala and Award (LaPRIGA) presented to Airtel the Environment and 

Sustainability PR Award. 
 
 
 In 2024, for the annual “Airtel 5 Days of Love” campaign, Airtel Networks Limited provided food, and 

drinks to 5,000 underserved people across six different locations during this end of year celebratory 

period. The “Airtel 5 Days of Love” which is in its 10th year is a programme designed to identify with 

less privileged persons as well as the downtrodden in communities where Airtel operates. The activities 

spanned across Lagos, Osun, Enugu, Rivers, Borno, and Abuja FCT.
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Directors’ Report (cont’d) 

 

To promote environmental stewardship, Airtel Nigeria organized a series of activities to mark World 

Environment Day. The highlight was an enlightening session led by Dr. Eugene Itua, a foremost sustainability 

and circular economy expert, aimed at raising awareness about plastic pollution and inspiring proactive 

measures within and outside the organization. 

 

Additionally, over 100 employees participated in a beach clean-up at Baadun Beach, Ajah, alongside students 

from Refiners Academy, Sangotedo, who are part of the Green Fingers Initiative. 

 

Further reinforcing our commitment to sustainability, new waste management bins were strategically installed 

across all Airtel offices and retail shops nationwide. These bins, categorized as blue (paper, plastic bottles, and 

cans) and green (food scraps and paper towels), were introduced to foster a cleaner and safer work 

environment. 

 

Additionally, through the Employee Volunteer Scheme (EVS) continues to make a significant impact in 

communities across Nigeria. This special platform, currently comprising over 150 registered Airtel employees, 

enables staff to donate their time and resources to support the underprivileged and many more. 

 

Since its inception in 2011, EVS has contributed a total of ₦67.8 million towards various humanitarian projects 

through both financial donations and volunteer efforts. In 2024, the initiative executed several impactful 

projects, including: 

 

We also honored an invitation to a one-day football tournament from Parkinson’s Africa, founded by Omotola 

Thomas, to raise awareness about Parkinson’s disease. Airtel Nigeria as the only participating telco. Our 

football team played alongside other organizations to raise 

awareness and support the Parkinson’s community. 

 

To commemorate World Children's Day, Airtel Nigeria hosted 24 children from Oremeji Primary School II, one 

of our seven adopted schools, at our headquarters in Banana Island. The event featured an interactive 

mentorship session where key functional leads engaged the students.
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Directors’ Report (cont’d) 
 
Girls in ICT Day 

In celebration of Girls in ICT Day, Airtel Nigeria held insightful sessions in Lagos, Abuja, Ibadan, Port Harcourt, 

and Enugu, engaging 150 young girls in STEM education. The Airtel Women Network (AWN) played a crucial 

role, demonstrating Airtel’s commitment to gender diversity and inclusion in STEM fields. 

 
Green Fingers Sustainability Learning Center Inauguration 

Airtel Nigeria handed over a newly constructed sustainability learning facility to Green Fingers Initiative, a 

beneficiary of Airtel Touching Lives Season 7. This initiative fosters environmental consciousness and 

sustainable practices among young people. 

 
Crimson Bow Initiative 

To mark World Sickle Cell Day 2024, Airtel Nigeria teamed up with the CrimsonBow Sickle Cell Initiative for a 

life-changing community health drive on June 22nd at Primary School, Ikeja, Lagos. The event focused on 

raising awareness and providing support for individuals living with sickle cell anemia. 
 
 
Airtel 5 Days of Love 

Over the years, Airtel Nigeria has consistently embraced the true essence of the yuletide season, sharing love 

with the underprivileged through its heartwarming "5 Days of Love" campaign. 

 
In the previous years, Airtel had partnered with Chicken Republic to provide nourishing meals for 5,000 
individuals across five states in Nigeria, with a focus on providing 1,000 meals per region across five 
geographical regions. 
 
 
Recognition 

 

 Airtel Nigeria’s CSR efforts in 2024 earned several prestigious accolades: 
 
- CrimsonBow Initiative presented Airtel with an Award of Appreciation for our support in sickle cell 

advocacy. 
- At the SERAs (Sustainability, Enterprise, and Responsibility Awards) 2024, Airtel Nigeria won the 

Partnership of the Year Award for the second consecutive time for the Reimagine Education Project, 

executed in partnership with UNICEF. This initiative expanded to over 1,200 schools across Nigeria, each 

receiving 50GB of Airtel data for digital learning. 

- The Lagos Public Relations Industry Gala and Awards (LAPRIGA) honored Airtel Nigeria with the 

Environment and Sustainability PR Award for our Baadun Beach Cleanup initiative.
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Directors’ Report (cont’d) 
 
5. Directors’ interests 

 The directors and their beneficial interests in the shares of the Company as at 31 December 2024 were 
as follows:                                                                                                                                                       
 
 
 
Names 

  
 
 
Designation 

 
 
Date Appointed/ 
Resignation 

 
 
 
Representing 

Number of 
Ordinary 
Shares of 
N1.00 each   

Hons. Justice Salihu Alfa Modibbo 
Belgore (Rtd) GCON (Nigerian) 

- Chairman Appointed 23 September 
2014/ Resigned 31 July 
2024 

- Nil 

 
Mrs. Ajumobia Awuneba 
Sotonye (Nigerian) 
 

 
- 

 
Chairman 

 
Appointed 07 October 
2024 

 
- 

 
Nil 

Mr. Olusegun Ogunsanya 
(Nigerian) 

- Director Appointed 12 November 
2012/ Resigned 30 June 
2024 

Bharti Airtel 
Nigeria B.V 

Nil 

      
Mr. Sunil Taldar (Indian) 
 

- Director Appointed 01 
July 2024 

Bharti Airtel 
Nigeria B.V 

Nil 

      
Mr. Jaideep Paul  (Indian) - Director Appointed 29 May 2014 Bharti Airtel 

Nigeria B.V 
Nil 

      
Mr. Carl Cruz (Philippines) - MD/CEO Appointed 5 May 2023/ 

Resigned 31 October 2024 
- Nil 

      
Mr. Dinesh Balsingh (Indian) 
 

-  MD/CEO Appointed 01 
November 2024 

- Nil 

      
Mr. Emeka Onwuka (Nigerian) 
 

- Director Appointed 5 September 
2018 

- Nil 

      
Mr. Rama Krishna Lella (Indian) - Director Appointed 6 February 

2019 
Bharti Airtel 
Nigeria B.V 

Nil 

      
Ms. Rogany Ramiah (South 
African) 

- Director Appointed 12 June 2019 Bharti Airtel 
Nigeria B.V 

Nil 

      
Mr. Patrick Akinwuntan 
(Nigerian)                         

- Director Appointed 5 May 2023 - Nil 

 
The companies represented by the directors are direct shareholders of Airtel Networks Limited. 

 
6. Directors’ interest in contracts 

 In accordance with Section 303 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020, the following directors 
declared the interests of companies they represent in contracts with the Company: 

 
 Mr. Olusegun Ogunsanya - TCF Microfinance Bank Limited (Banking Services) 
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Directors’ Report (cont’d) 
 
7. Property, plant, and equipment 

 Information relating to changes in property, plant and equipment is disclosed in Note 17 to the financial 
statements.  

 
8. Investment in Subsidiary 

Airtel Networks Limited owns 99.99% of the shares of Airtel Mobile Commerce Nigeria Limited, a company 
incorporated on 31 August 2017. The principal activity of the Company is to act as a provider of electronic 
commerce (e-commerce) service, facilitate the acceptability of mobile money, act as an agent of financial 
institutions carrying out the business of agency banking as well as act as aggregator and manager of agents 
networks for the same purpose. The Company possesses a super-agent license issued by the Central Bank 
of Nigeria. 

 
Airtel Mobile Commerce Nigeria Limited is yet to commence business as at 31 December 2024. Details of 
investment in the subsidiary is provided in Note 35(c). 

 
In its commitment to the fulfilment of the financial inclusion agenda of the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) 
and Federal Republic of Nigeria, Airtel Networks Limited acquired 99.99% of the shares of Smartcash 
Payment Service Bank Limited, a company duly incorporated on 30 November 2022 and licensed by the 
CBN as a payment service bank. 

 
During the year, the investment in Smartcash Payment Service Bank was increased from N5billion to 
N17.5billion. Subsequently, 25% of the shares of Smartcash Payment Service bank was sold to Airtel 
Mobile Commerce Nigeria BV at par value 
 

9. Charitable contributions 

The Company made donations through projects and gifts totalling N79.35 million (2023: N206.75 million) 
to the following charitable activities: 
 

Corporate Social Responsibility Projects 
 2024  2023 
Activities N’000  N’000 

Adopt-a-School – Textbooks and writing materials  3,865  - 

World Environment Day- Waste Sorting Bins  7,637  - 

Sustainability Centre-Green Hope Foundation 29,903  - 

SERAS Awards 2024 5,993  - 

Airtel Touching Lives  -  188,747 

5 days of Love Campaign  31,947  18,000 

  
79,345 

 
206,747 

. 
In compliance with the Companies and Allied Matters Act 2020, the Company did not make any donations 
or gifts to any political association or for any political purpose during the year under review. 
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Directors’ Report (cont’d) 
 
10. Employment and employees 

 
(a) Employment of disabled persons 

It is the policy of the Company that there should be no discrimination in considering applications for 
employment including those from disabled persons.  All employees whether or not disabled are given equal 
opportunities to develop. As at 31 December 2024, there was one disabled person in the employment of the 
Company. 

 
(b)    Health, safety and welfare at work 
           The Company places a high premium on the health, safety and welfare of its employees in their place of work.  

 
To this end, the Company has various forms of insurance policies, including workmen’s compensation and 
Group life insurance, to adequately secure and protect its employees. The Company also has Safety, Health 
and Environment (S.H.E.) policies that employees are required to adhere to. 

 
         (c )     Employees’ involvement and training 

The Company remains committed to engaging employees through its various online, virtual and physical 
communication channels through which performance on Key Business drivers are shared and 
recommendations received from employees. 

 
In addition to Function-specific trainings, programmes which are targeted at enhancing Organizational 
Capabilities were rolled out across various employee levels. These included Project Management, Process 
Quality Management, and Business Analytics. Various People Management and Leadership Development 
interventions were also deployed, including Managerial Assessment of Proficiency (MAP), Coaching for 
Performance, Executive Coaching and Leadership Knowledge Series. 

 
11. Business ethics and compliance code 

 The Company has instituted a sound Business Ethics and Compliance Code, which ensures that its business is 
conducted in conformity with highest ethical principles, standards and integrity. It continually creates ethical 
awareness amongst its directors, officers and business partners to ensure full compliance with Nigerian and 
applicable international laws and conventions on anti-corruption, anti-money laundering and anti-terrorism. 

 
12. Auditors 

 Messrs’ Deloitte & Touche has expressed their willingness to continue in office as the Company’s auditors in 
accordance with the provision of the Companies and Allied Matters Act 2020.  

 
 
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD 
 
 
 
____________________________                       
Shola Adeyemi  
Company Secretary  
FRC/2016/PRO/NBA/002/00000014257 
 
Plot L2, 
Banana Island, Ikoyi, 
Lagos 
Date: ________________   

 

30 June 2025
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities 
 
The Directors of  Airtel Networks Limited accept responsibility  for the preparation of the financial statements 
that give a true and fair view of  the financial position of the Company  as at 31 December 2024, and the 
results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity for the year then ended, in compliance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") and in the manner required by the Companies and Allied 
Matters Act, 2020 of Nigeria and the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria (Amendment)  Act, 2023. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for: 
 

• Properly selecting and applying accounting policies; 

• Presenting information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, 
comparable and understandable information; 

• Providing additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient 
to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the 
Company’s financial position and financial performance. 

 
 
Going Concern: 
The Directors have made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and have 
no reason to believe the Company will not remain a going concern in the year ahead. Details of the going concern 
is seen in Note 39 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________            ____________________________ 
Emeka Onwuka      Dinesh Balsingh           
Director                              Director                 
FRC/2020/PRO/ICAN/006/00000020861  FRC/2025/PRO/DIR/003/159085 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mobile User
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Management's annual assessment of, and report on the entity's internal control over financial reporting 

 
To comply with the provisions of Section 7 (2f) of the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act (Amendment) 
2023, we hereby make the following statements regarding the Internal Controls of Airtel Networks Limited for 
the year ended 31 December 2024.  

i. The Management of AIRTEL NETWORKS LIMITED (“Airtel” or the “Company”) is responsible for 

establishing and maintaining an adequate system of internal control over financial reporting, including 

safeguarding of assets against unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition. This system is designed to 

provide reasonable assurance to Management and the Board of Directors regarding the reliability of 

financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles. 

 
ii. Airtel Networks Limited’s system of internal control over financial reporting is supported with written 

policies and procedures, contains self-monitoring mechanisms, and is audited by the internal audit 

function. Appropriate actions are taken by management to correct deficiencies as they are identified. All 

internal control systems have inherent limitations, including the possibility of circumvention and 

overriding of controls, and, therefore, can provide only reasonable assurance as to the reliability of 

financial statement preparation and such asset safeguarding. 

 
iii. Airtel Networks Limited management used the Committee of Sponsoring Organisation of the Treadway 

Commission (COSO) Internal Control-Integrated Framework to conduct the required evaluation of the 

effectiveness of the entity's ICFR.  

 
iv. Airtel Networks Limited’s Management has assessed that the entity's ICFR as of the end of 31 December 

2024 is effective. Additionally, based upon management’s assessment, the Company determined that 

there were no material weaknesses in its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 

2024. 

 
 
 
 
________________________                _____________________________ 
Dinesh Balsingh       Phanindra Nichanametla 
CEO         CFO 
FRC/2025/PRO/DIR/003/159085     FRC/2024/PRO/ICAN/001/665889     
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Certification of financial statements 
 
In accordance with section 405 of the Companies and Allied Act of Nigeria, the Chief Executive Officer and the 
Chief Financial Officer certify that the financial statements have been reviewed and based on our knowledge, the 
  
(i) audited financial statements do not contain any untrue statement of material fact or omit to state a material 

fact, which would make the statements misleading, in the light of the circumstances under which such 
statement was made, and 

(ii) audited financial statements and all other financial information included in the statements fairly present, in 
all material respects, the financial condition and results of operation of the company as of and for, the periods 
covered by the audited financial statements; 

 
We state that management and directors: 
 
(i) are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls and has designed such internal controls to 

ensure that material information relating to the Company is made known to the officer by other officers of 
the Company, particularly during the period in which the audited financial statement report is being 
prepared, 

(ii) have evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s internal controls within 90 days prior to the date of its 
audited financial statements, and 

(iii) certify that Company’s internal controls are effective as of that date; 
 
We have disclosed:   
 
(i) all significant deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls which could adversely affect the 

Company’s ability to record, process, summarise and report financial data, and has identified for the 
Company’s auditors any material weaknesses in internal controls, and 

(ii) whether or not, there is any fraud that involves management or other employees who have a significant role 
in the Company’s internal control; and 

(iii) as indicated in the report, whether or not, there were significant changes in internal controls or in other 
factors that could significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of their evaluation, including 
any corrective actions with regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses. 

 
The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024 were approved by the directors 
on ………………………., 2025.  
 
                                                                                                                  
 
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors 
 
 
 
 
________________________               ______________________________ 
Phanindra Nichanametla                    Dinesh Balsingh 
CFO        CEO 
FRC/2024/PRO/ICAN/001/665889                      FRC/2025/PRO/DIR/003/159085 
 
 
 

30 June 
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Certification of Management’s assessment on internal controls over financial reporting 
 
In compliance with the provisions of section 405 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020 and provisions of Section 
7 (2f) of the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act (Amendment) 2023 on internal control over financial reporting, 
the directors, whose names are stated below, hereby certify that:  
 
a. I have reviewed audited financial statements of Airtel Networks Limited for the year ended 31 December 2024;  

 
b. Based on our knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a 

material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements 
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;  
 

c. Based on our knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly 
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the company as of, 
and for, the periods presented in this report;  
 

d. I also certify that we:  
 

- are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls;  

- have designed such internal controls and procedures, or caused such internal controls and procedures to be 

designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the company is made known 

to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;  

- have designed such internal control system, or caused such internal control system to be designed under our 

supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 

of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;  

- have evaluated the effectiveness of the company's internal controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days 

prior to the report and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the internal controls 

and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation.  

 
e. I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control system, to the company's auditors and 

the audit committee of the company's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):  
 

1) That there are no significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in the design or operation of the internal 
control system which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the company’s ability to record, process, 
summarize and report financial information; and 

2) That there is no fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a 
significant role in the company's internal control system.  
 

f.  I identified, in the report whether or not there were significant changes in internal controls or other facts that could 
significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of their evaluation including any corrective actions with 
regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses 

 
 
 

________________________                
Dinesh Balsingh 
CEO         
FRC/2025/PRO/DIR/003/159085 
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Certification of Management’s assessment on internal controls over financial reporting 
 
In compliance with the provisions of section 405 of the Companies and Allied Matters Act, 2020 and provisions of Section 
7 (2f) of the Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria Act (Amendment) 2023 on internal control over financial reporting, 
the directors, whose names are stated below, hereby certify that:  
 
a. I have reviewed audited financial statements of Airtel Networks Limited for the year ended 31 December 2024;  

 
b. Based on our knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a 

material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements 
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;  
 

c. Based on our knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly 
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the company as of, 
and for, the periods presented in this report;  
 

d. I also certify that we:  
 

- are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls;  
- have designed such internal controls and procedures, or caused such internal controls and procedures to be 

designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the company is made known 
to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;  

- have designed such internal control system, or caused such internal control system to be designed under our 
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation 
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;  

- have evaluated the effectiveness of the company's internal controls and procedures as of a date within 90 days 
prior to the report and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the internal controls 
and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation.  

 
e. I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control system, to the company's auditors and the 

audit committee of the company's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):  
 

3) That there are no significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in the design or operation of the internal 
control system which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the company’s ability to record, process, 
summarize and report financial information; and 

4) That there is no fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a 
significant role in the company's internal control system.  

 
f.  I identified, in the report whether or not there were significant changes in internal controls or other facts that could 

significantly affect internal controls subsequent to the date of their evaluation including any corrective actions with 
regard to significant deficiencies and material weaknesses 
 
 
 
 

_____________________________                
Phanindra Nichanametla                                      
CFO         
FRC/2024/PRO/ICAN/001/665889                        
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income 
 

 
        2024  2023 

 Notes  N’000  N’000 
 

     
Revenue from operations 6  1,467,125,262  1,088,075,287 
Cost of sales 7  (653,378,174)     (448,029,539) 

Gross profit   813,747,088  
 

640,045,748 
      
Other income 8  5,535,633    5,109,621   
Selling and marketing costs 9  (40,501,910)  (26,771,636) 
Administrative expenses 10  (14,166,356)  (32,783,081) 
Other operating expenses 11  (322,959,826)  (212,612,808) 
Net impairment losses on financial assets  22(e)  (1,837,590)  (1,011,654) 

Results from operating activities   439,817,039  371,976,190 

      
Finance income 12  827,763  1,463,850 
Finance costs 13  (340,969,527)  (94,647,339) 
Net derivatives and foreign exchange losses* 13(b)  (571,258,263)  (663,592,844) 

        
Net finance costs   (911,400,027)  (756,776,333) 

      
Loss before tax 14  (471,582,988)  (384,800,143) 
      
Minimum Tax 15(a)(i)  (7,371,252)  - 

      
Loss before Income tax   (478,954,240)  (384,800,143) 
      
Tax benefit 15(a)(ii)  156,787,978  131,508,408 

Loss for the year after tax   
 

(322,166,263)  (253,291,735) 

      
Other comprehensive income     -  - 
      
Total comprehensive Loss for the year, net of tax   (322,166,263)  (253,291,735) 
 
Earnings per share      
Basic and diluted (₦) 16  (26.42)  (20.77) 
 
*Included in the net derivative and foreign losses is the impact of the devaluation of Naira. Underlying profit 
before and after tax excluding the impact of the devaluation is presented in note 13b 
 
The accompanying notes on pages 23 to 106 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Statement of Changes in Equity 
 
 

         

 Share Capital  
Treasury 

Shares 
 Share 

Premium  
Retained 
Earnings  Total Equity 

 N’000  N’000  N’000  N’000  N’000 
2024          
 
As at 1 January 2024 13,286,999  (67,553,510) 

 
67,235,360  (89,320,276)  (76,351,427) 

          
Loss for the year -  -  -  (322,166,263)  (322,166,263) 
Other comprehensive income -  -  -  -  - 

Total comprehensive Loss 
 

-  
 

- 
 

-  (322,166,263)  (322,166,263) 

As at 31 December 2024 
 

13,286,999  
 

(67,553,510) 
 

67,235,360  (411,486,539)  (398,517,690) 
          
          
2023 
 
As at 1 January 2023 13,286,999  (67,553,510) 

 

67,235,360  163,971,459  176,940,308 

          
Loss for the year -  -  -  (253,291,735)  (253,291,735) 

Other comprehensive income -  
 

- 
 

-  -  - 

Total comprehensive Loss 
 

-  - 
 

-  (253,291,735)  (253,291,735) 

As at 31 December 2023 
 

13,286,999  
 

(67,553,510) 
 

67,235,360  (89,320,276)  (76,351,427) 

 
The accompanying notes on pages 23 to 106 form an integral part of these financial statements. 
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Statement of Cash Flows 
 

 Note  2024  2023 
Cash flows from operating activities   N’000  N’000 
Loss for the year before tax   (471,582,988)  (384,800,143) 
      
Non cash adjustments:      
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 17(b)  95,427,668  73,286,651 
Depreciation of right of use 19  164,758,959  89,201,455 
Amortization of intangible assets 18  32,368,341  28,411,586 
Finance income 12  (827,763)  (1,463,850) 
Finance cost 13  340,969,527  94,647,339 
Net Derivative and foreign exchange losses 13(b)  571,258,263  663,592,844 
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 8  (4,832,754)  (4,606,294) 
Inventory provision movement 21  378,640  (341,108) 
Increase in Employee benefit liability 32  583,303  401,013 
Net impairment on financial assets 22(f)  3,389,944  2,152,766 
Net foreign exchange differences 38.1  (282,192,334)  (303,145,560) 
Other non-cash items 38.2  (481,933)  85,135 

   449,216,873  257,421,834 
      

Changes in working capital:      
Increase in Inventory 21  (8,140,119)  (4,078,587) 
Increase in Trade and other receivables 22(f)  (27,421,235)  (43,416,181) 
Increase in Other assets 23  (48,945,668)  (10,368,564) 
Increase in Income tax recoverable 24.1  (1,005,518)  (1,440,542) 
Increase in Deferred revenue 30  23,081,062  8,665,542 
Increase in Provisions 29  158,945  2,238 
Increase in Trade and other payables 33  136,045,190  195,502,511 
(Decrease)/Increase in Derivative financial liability 34  (52,317,507)  120,086,083 
Decrease/(Increase) in Other financial asset 20  43,278,070  (34,570,258) 
Decrease/(Increase) in Derivative financial asset 34  6,333,900  (5,953,450) 

Cash generated from operating activities   520,283,993  481,850,626 

      
Income tax paid current 15(c)  (25,448,617)  (39,880,334) 

Net cash generated from operating activities   494,835,376  441,970,292 
       
Cash flows from investing activities      
Investment in subsidiary 35(c)  (12,500,000)  - 
Proceeds on disposal of Investment in subsidiary 35(c)  4,375,000  - 
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 17(a)  5,235,100  5,545,178 
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 17  (267,429,071)  (190,443,400) 
Acquisition of intangible asset 18  (580,356)  (58,668,966) 
Grant received 30  89,361  76,648 
Interest received 12  814,584  1,454,050 

Net cash used in investing activities   (269,995,382)  (242,036,490) 

      
Cash flows from financing activities      
Short term loan received – trade import facility 28(d)  2,260,919  35,665,559 
Short term loan paid – trade import facility 28(d)  (2,687,224)  (57,158,864) 
Term loan 28(a)  480,191,189  82,429,484 
Term loan repaid 28(a)  (367,208,315)  (86,674,950) 
Shareholders loan received 28(b)  -  14,165,318 
Interest paid on borrowings and lease liabilities 13(a)  (340,605,973)  (88,619,448) 
Dividend paid 33(b)  -  (137,184,301) 
Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities 31(a)  (110,440,257)  (105,910,998) 

Net cash used in financing activities   (338,489,661)  (343,288,200) 

      
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents   (113,649,667)  (143,354,398) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year   (71,088,440)  69,747,646 
Effect of foreign exchange on cash and cash equivalent 38.1  3,138,190  2,518,312 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 25  
 

(181,599,917)  (71,088,440) 

 
The accompanying notes on pages 23 to 106 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements                           
 

1. Corporate Information 
 

Airtel Networks Limited is a private limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in Nigeria.  The 
registered office of the Company is located at Plot L2 Banana Island, Ikoyi Lagos, Nigeria. The principal 
activity of the Company is the provision of telecommunications services and products using its licensed 
platforms. Airtel Networks Limited is an indirect subsidiary of Bharti Airtel International (Netherlands) 
B.V. and has Airtel Africa Plc as its intermediate parent. 

 
2. Basis of preparation and measurement 

 
(a) Statement of compliance 

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) applicable 
to companies reporting under IFRS and the requirements of the Companies and Allied Matters Act of 
Nigeria (CAMA 2020) and Financial Reporting Council of Nigeria (Amendment) Act 2023. 

 
(b) Basis of measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for items measured at fair 
value as indicated in the policies below.  
Historical cost is based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. 
 

(c) Functional and presentation currency  
The financial statements have been presented in Naira which is the Company’s functional and 
presentation currency. The Company determines its own functional currency (the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the entity operates) and items included in the financial statements are 
measured using its functional currency. All values are rounded to the nearest thousand, except when 
otherwise indicated. 

 
(d) Use of estimate and judgement 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as well as disclosures 
of contingent assets and liabilities at the reporting date and the reported amount of revenue and 
expenses during the period.  

 
(e) Current vs. non-current classification 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position based on current/non-
current classification. An asset is current when it is: 

 
i) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal operating cycle; 
ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
iii) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
iv) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 

twelve months after the reporting period 
 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
 

2. Basis of preparation (cont’d) 
 

(e) Current vs. non-current classification (cont’d) 
 
A liability is current when: 

 
i) It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; 
ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading; 
iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or 
iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after 

the reporting period. 
 
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified 
as non-current assets and liabilities. 

 
(f) Fair value measurement 

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value and amortised cost as may be applicable at 
each reporting date.  
 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based 
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either: 

 
i) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
ii) in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 

 
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimising the use of unobservable inputs. 
 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: 
Level 1   - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is directly or indirectly observable 
Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable 
For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing 
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

 
(g) Going concern 

The directors have, at the time of approving the financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the 
Company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus, 
the Company continues to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial 
statements.  
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
3. Summary of material accounting policies 
 

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out 
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless otherwise stated.   

 
3.1 Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and Capital Work-in-progress (CWIP) 

 
(a) Recognition, measurement and derecognition 

Items of property, plant and equipment (PPE) are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The initial cost of an item of PPE comprises its purchase price or 
construction cost, any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset into operation, and the initial 
estimate of any decommissioning obligation. The purchase price or construction cost is the aggregate 
amount paid and the fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the asset. Costs also include 
cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long term construction projects 
if the recognition criteria are met. Capital Work-In-Progress (CWIP) is stated at cost.  
 
The Company also enters into multiple element contracts whereby the vendor supplies plant and 
equipment and other services. These are recorded on the basis of relative fair value. When significant 
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the Company recognises 
such parts as separate components of assets with specific useful lives and provides depreciation over 
their useful lives. 

 
(b) Subsequent costs 

The expenditure incurred after an item of PPE is ready to use, such as repairs and maintenance, are 
charged to the comprehensive income in the period in which such costs are incurred. However, in 
situations where the said expenditure can be measured reliably, and is probable that future economic 
benefits associated with it will flow to the company, it is included in the asset’s carrying value or as a 
separate asset, as appropriate. 
 

(c) Depreciation methods 
Assets are depreciated to the residual values on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives from 
the date when it is available for use in the manner intended by management. The assets’ residual values, 
useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed at each financial year end or whenever there are 
indicators for review, and any adjustment is done prospectively. Freehold land and capital work-in-
progress are not depreciated. The attributable cost of each item of capital work-in-progress is transferred 
to the relevant asset category immediately when the asset is available for use and depreciated 
accordingly. Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:  

 

Assets Useful life  
GSM equipment  3 - 25 years 
Information system equipment  3 – 5 years 
Building  20 years 
Office furniture and equipment 2 - 5 years 
Motor vehicles 
Leasehold improvement 

5 years 
Period of lease or 10 –20 years,  
as applicable, whichever is less 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
 

3.1 Property, plant and equipment (cont’d) 
 
(d) De-recognition 

Gains and losses arising from retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined as 
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are 
recognised in profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income on the date of retirement and 
disposal. 

 
3.2 Intangible assets 

Intangible assets are those identifiable non-monetary assets without physical substances. They include 
those that are acquired separately by the Company including digital mobile licence fees, and other licence 
fees and software. Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost and subsequently, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, 
if any. Licences are amortised over the useful life of the intangible assets on a straight line basis from the 
effective date (digital mobile licence from commercial launch date) of the licence except software. 
Software is amortised from the date the asset is available for use. This closely reflects the expected 
pattern of usage of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. Estimated useful lives of the 
assets are as follows: 

 

Items       Useful Life 
1800 MHz Spectrum      10 years 
3G/2100 MHz Spectrum Licence                    15 years  
Universal Access Service Licence (UASL)    10 years  
2600 MHz Spectrum (4G LTE)    10 years 
Software Licence      3 years 
3500 MHz Spectrum      10 years  

 
The useful life or amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset are reviewed 
at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern 
of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the 
amortisation period or method, as appropriate. The amortisation expense on intangible assets is 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in the other operating 
expense category.  
 
De-recognition of intangible assets 
Intangible assets are derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from 
its use. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in statement 
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
 

3.2 Intangible assets (cont’d) 
 

Internally-generated intangible assets – research and development expenditure 
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.  
An internally generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an 
internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the following conditions have been demonstrated:  
 

• The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale  

• The intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it 

• The ability to use or sell the intangible asset 

• The intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits 

• The availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development 
and to use or sell the intangible asset 

• The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its 
development 

 

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure 
incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above.  
Where no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is 
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.  
Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets are reported at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 

  

3.3 Impairment of Property, plant and equipment, Right-of-use assets, Intangible assets and intangible 
assets under development 
At each reporting period date, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its PPE, right- of-use assets, 
CWIP and finite-lived intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets 
have suffered an impairment loss. Intangible assets under development are tested for impairment, at 
least annually or earlier, in case circumstances indicate that it may be impaired. 

 

For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (that is, higher of the fair value less costs 
to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis, unless the asset does not generate 
cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets, in which case the recoverable amount 
is determined at the CGU level to which the asset belongs. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) 
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to 
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss representing the excess of recoverable value over the 
carrying value of the asset/CGU is recognised immediately in profit and loss.  
 

Reversal of impairment losses 
Impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For asset excluding goodwill, an assessment is 
made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised 
impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates 
the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. 
 

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions 
used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The 
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment 
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or 
loss.  
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
3.4 Business Combinations 

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred 
in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date 
fair values of assets transferred by the Company, liabilities incurred by the Company to the former owners 
of the acquiree and the equity interest issued by the Company in exchange for control of the acquiree. 
Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.  
 
In accordance with the exemption requirements of IFRS 10, Airtel Networks Limited has elected not to 
provide a consolidation of Airtel Mobile Commerce Nigeria Limited and Smart Cash Payment Service Bank 
Limited due to the following reasons: 
 
(a) Airtel Networks Limited is an indirect subsidiary of Bharti Airtel International (Netherlands) B.V. 

which in turn is a subsidiary of Airtel Africa Plc and the owners of the Company has been informed 
and do not object to the "Airtel Networks Limited" not presenting consolidated financial 
statements; 

 

(b) Airtel Networks Limited does not have any debt or equity instruments traded in a public market - 
either local or foreign as it is a private limited company; 

 

(c) Airtel Networks Limited has not filed nor in the process of filing its financials with a securities 
commission or regulatory for purpose of issuing instruments; and 

 

(d) Airtel Networks Limited has Airtel Africa Plc as its intermediate parent. Airtel Africa Plc is a listed 
entity on both the London Stock Exchange and Nigerian Stock Exchange (NSE), and prepares 
consolidated financial statements for public use in its listed markets in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs). Airtel Mobile Commerce Nigeria Limited and 
Smart Cash Payment Service Bank Limited are consolidated in Financial Statements of Airtel Africa 
Plc. 

 
3.5 Inventories 

Inventories are defined as assets held for sale in the ordinary course of business or in the process of 
production for such sale or in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process 
or in the rendering of services. The Company’s inventories primarily consist of cellular telephones, 
accessories, MiFis, routers and SIM packs.  

 
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost (determined on a first in first out (‘FIFO’) basis) and net 
realisable value. Inventory costs include purchase price, freight inwards and transit insurance charges 
and other directly attributable costs incurred in bringing inventories to present location and condition. 
The cost of inventory is reduced to its net realisable value once the inventories are damaged, wholly or 
partly obsolete or its selling price has declined. In accordance with IAS 2.28-33, if the inventory value 
including the purchase price and the refurbishing costs exceeds expected net realizable value, the trade-
in value is reduced to the latter. SIM inventories are measured on the lower of cost and net realisable 
value (NRV).  

 
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs 
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 
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3.6 Leases 
At inception of a contract, the company assesses a contract as, or containing, a lease if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, 
the company assesses whether the contract involves the use of an identified asset, the company has the 
right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period of 
use; and the company has the right to direct the use of the asset. 
 

(a) Company as a lessee 
The company recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease 
agreements in which it is the lessee in the statement of financial position. The lease liability is initially 
measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, 
discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the company 
uses its incremental borrowing rate. Lease liabilities include the net present value of fixed payments 
(including in-substance fixed payments), variable lease payments that are based on consumer price 
index (CPI), the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that 
option, and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee 
exercising that option. In some of the contracts, portion of the non-energy lease payments are 
denominated in US currency but payable in Naira at applicable exchange rate.  
 
Subsequently, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 
It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments including changes in CPI or if the 
company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option 
or when the lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate 
lease. The corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right- of-use asset, or is 
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the related right-of-use asset has been reduced to 
zero. 
 
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount of the initial measurement of the lease 
liability, any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives 
received, any initial direct costs, and restoration costs. 
 
Subsequent to initial recognition, right-of-use asset are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
any impairment losses and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. Depreciation 
is computed using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the useful life 
of the underlying asset or the end of the lease term, whichever is shorter. The estimated useful lives of 
right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of the underlying asset. 
 
In the statement of financial position, the right- of-use assets and lease liabilities are presented 
separately. 
 
When a contract includes lease and non-lease components, the company allocates the consideration in 
the contract on the basis of the relative stand-alone prices of each lease component and the aggregate 
stand-alone price of the non-lease components. 
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3.6 Leases (cont’d) 
 
Short-term leases  
The company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases 
that have a lease term of 12 months or less. The company recognises the lease payments associated 
with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 
Sale and lease back 
In sale and leaseback transactions, the company first considers whether the initial transfer of the 
underlying asset to the buyer-lessor is a sale by applying the requirements of IFRS 15. If the transfer 
qualifies as a sale and the transaction is on market terms, the company derecognises the asset, 
recognises a right-of-use asset (and lease liabilities) and recognises a portion of the total gain or loss on 
the sale in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The right-of-use asset is 
recognised at the proportion of the previous carrying amount of the asset that relates to the right of use 
retained by the seller-lessee. The amount recognised is calculated by splitting the total gain or loss into: 
 

• an amount recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income relating 
to the buyer lessor’s rights in the underlying asset, and 

• an unrecognised amount relating to the rights retained by the seller-lessee which is deferred by way 
of reducing the right-of-use assets initially recognised. 

 
(b)    Company as a lessor 

Whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the 
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases. 
 
Amounts due from lessees under a finance lease are recognised as receivables at an amount equal to 
the net investment in the leased assets. Finance lease income is allocated to the periods so as to reflect 
a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outstanding in respect of the finance lease. 
 
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant 
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the 
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
 
When a contract includes lease and non-lease components, the Company applies IFRS 15 to allocate the 
consideration under the contract to each component. 
 
The company enters into ‘indefeasible right to use’ (IRU) arrangements wherein the right to use the 
assets is given over the substantial part of the asset life. However, as the title to the assets and the 
significant risks associated with the operation and maintenance of these assets remains with the 
company, such arrangements are recognised as operating leases. The contracted price is recognised as 
revenue during the tenure of the agreement. Unearned IRU revenue received in advance is presented 
as deferred revenue within liabilities in the statement of financial position. 
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3.7 Financial instruments 

Financial instruments are recognised in the statement of financial position when the company becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. 
 
The company determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition. 
 
The company classifies its financial assets into the following categories: 
 

• those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or 
through profit or loss); and 

• those to be measured at amortised cost. 
 
The company does not have any financial instruments classified as fair value through other 
comprehensive income. 
 
The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and the 
contractual terms of the cash flows. 
 
The company has classified all non-derivative financial liabilities as measured at amortised cost. 
 
Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in their entirety for determining the 
contractual terms of the cash flow and accordingly, embedded derivatives are not separated. However, 
derivatives embedded in non-financial instrument /financial liabilities (measured at amortised cost) host 
contracts are classified as separate derivatives if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely 
related to those of the host contracts. 
 
Financial assets and liabilities arising from different transactions are off-set against each other and the 
resultant net amount is presented in the statement of financial position, if and only when, the company 
currently has a legally enforceable right to set- off the related recognised amounts and intends either to 
settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than 
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from 
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. 
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. 
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3.7 Financial instruments (cont’d) 
 
Measurement – Non-derivative financial instruments - Initial measurement 
 
The transaction price is generally the best evidence of the financial instrument’s initial fair value. 
However, it is possible for an entity to determine that the instrument’s fair value is not the transaction 
price. The difference between the transaction amount and the fair value (if any) is accounted for as 
follows: 
 

• The difference is recognised as a gain or loss in the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income only if fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an 
identical asset or liability (that is, a Level 1 input) or based on a valuation technique that uses only 
data from observable markets.  

• In all other cases, an entity recognises the instrument at fair value and defers the difference between 
the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price in the statement of financial position. 

 
Subsequent measurement – financial assets 
The subsequent measurement of non- derivative financial assets depends on their classification as 
follows: 
 

• Financial assets measured at amortised cost 
Assets that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent 
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate (EIR) method (if the impact of discounting/any transaction costs is significant). Interest income 
from these financial assets is included in finance income. 
 
EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts or payments over the 
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying 
amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. 
  

• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 
All equity instruments and financial assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or fair 
value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) are measured at FVTPL. Interest (based on the 
EIR method) and dividend income from financial assets at FVTPL is recognised  
in profit and loss within finance income/finance costs separately from the other gains/losses arising 
from changes in the fair value. 

 
Impairment 
The company assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets 
carried at amortised cost and debt instrument carried at FVTOCI. The impairment methodology applied 
depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If credit 
risk has not increased significantly, 12 month expected credit loss (ECL) is used to provide for impairment 
loss, otherwise lifetime ECL is used. 
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3.7 Financial instruments (cont’d) 
  

However, in case of trade receivables and contract assets, the company applies the simplified approach 
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. 

 
 Subsequent measurement – financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method (if the impact of 
discounting/any transaction costs is significant). 
 
Measurement – derivative financial instruments 
Derivative financial instruments, including separated embedded derivatives that are not designated as 
hedging instruments in a hedging relationship are classified as financial instruments at fair value through 
profit or loss. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value. They are 
subsequently measured at their fair value, with changes in fair value being recognised as a separate line 
in statement of profit and loss under net derivative and foreign exchange losses. 
 
In cases, where the initial fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an 
identical asset or liability nor based on observable inputs, on subsequent measurement, the difference 
between initial fair value and transaction price is recognised in profit or loss on an appropriate basis (e.g. 
straight line) over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by 
observable market data or the transaction is closed out. 
 
Derecognition 
Financial liabilities are derecognised from the statement of financial position when the underlying 
obligations are extinguished, discharged, lapsed, cancelled, expired, or legally released. Financial assets 
are derecognised from the statement of financial position when the rights to receive cash flows from 
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the company has transferred substantially 
all risks and rewards of ownership. The difference in the carrying amount and consideration is 
recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. 
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3.8 Employee benefits 
 

(a) Short term benefits 
Liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries and annual 
leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected 
to be paid in exchange for that service. 

 
(b) Defined contributions: Pension 

In line with the provisions of the Pension Reform Act 2014 of Nigeria, the Company operates a 
contributory pension scheme (which is a defined contribution plan) for all its employees. Under the 
scheme, every employee contributes minimum of 8% and the Company contributes minimum of 10% of 
employee’s annual insurable earnings (basic pay, transport and housing) to the pension fund which 
manages the funds for the benefit of the employee.  
 

Staff contributions to the scheme are funded through payroll deductions while the Company’s 
contribution is charged to profit or loss as employee cost. The Company has no legal or constructive 
obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees 
the benefits under the scheme. 

 

(c) Defined benefit obligation (Long service award/Leave absence): 
The valuation has been carried out using the Project Unit Credit Method as per IAS19 Employee Benefits 
to determine the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligations and the related Current Service Cost and, 
where applicable, Past Service Cost.  
 

The company recognises service costs within profit or loss as employee benefit expenses. Past service 
cost is recognised in profit or loss when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs. Gains or losses on 
settlement of a defined benefit plan are recognised when the settlement occurs. Interest cost is 
calculated by applying a discount rate to the defined benefit liability and is recognised within finance 
costs. Remeasurements comprising actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately as a charge or 
credit to other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements recognised 
in other comprehensive income are subsequently not reclassified to profit or loss. 

 

3.9 Foreign currency transactions 
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency rates 
prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign 
currencies are translated at the functional currency rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date with 
resulting exchange difference recognised in profit or loss.  
 

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the 
rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Nonmonetary items that are measured 
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. 
 

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for: 

• exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future 
productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an 
adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings; and 

• exchange differences on transactions entered into to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see below 
under financial instruments/hedge accounting). 
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3.10 Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised upon the transfer of control of promised products or services to the customer at 
the consideration which the company has received or expects to receive in exchange for those products 
or services, net of any taxes/duties and discounts. When determining the consideration to which the 
company is entitled for providing promised products or services via intermediaries, the company assesses 
whether the intermediary is a principal or agent in the onward sale to the end customer. To the extent 
that the intermediary is considered a principal, the consideration to which the company is entitled is 
determined to be that receivable from the intermediary. To the extent that the intermediary is 
considered to be an agent, the consideration to which the company is entitled is determined to be the 
amount receivable from the ultimate customer. Any upfront discount provided to the intermediary is 
recognised as a cost of sale. 
 
The company has entered into certain multiple-element revenue arrangements, which involve the 
delivery or performance of multiple products, services or rights to use assets. At the inception of the 
arrangement, all the deliverables within the contract are evaluated to determine whether they represent 
distinct performance obligations, and if so, they are accounted for separately. 
 
Total consideration related to the multiple element arrangements is allocated to each performance 
obligation based on their relative standalone selling prices. The stand-alone selling prices are determined 
based on the list prices at which the company sells equipment and network services separately. 
 
Revenue is recognised when, or as, each distinct performance obligation is satisfied. The main categories 
of revenue and the basis of recognition are as follows: 
 

(a) Sales of goods 
Revenue from sale of handsets and device is recognised when control of the goods has been transferred, 
being at the point the customer purchases the goods at the retail outlet. Payment of the transaction price 
is due immediately at the point the customer purchases the goods. 

 
(b) Service revenues 

Service revenue is derived from the provision of telecommunications services and mobile money services 
to customers. The majority of the company’s customers subscribe to services on a pre-paid basis. 
Telecommunications service revenue mainly pertains to usage, subscription charges for voice, data, 
messaging and value added services and customer onboarding charges. 
 
Telecommunications services are considered to represent a single performance obligation as all are 
provided over the company’s network and transmitted as data representing a digital signal on the 
network. The transmission consumes network bandwidth and therefore, irrespective of the nature of the 
communication, the customer ultimately receives access to the network and the right to consume 
network bandwidth. 
 
Customers primarily pay in advance for services of the company. These cash amounts are recognised in 
deferred income in the statement of financial position and transferred to the statement of profit or loss 
and comprehensive income when the service obligation has been performed/when the usage of services 
becomes remote. 
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3.10 Revenue recognition (cont’d) 

The company recognises revenue from these services over time as they are provided. Revenue is 
recognised over time based on actual units of telecommunications services provided during the reporting 
period as a proportion of the total units of telecommunications services to be provided. 
 
Subscription charges are recognised over the subscription pack validity period. 
 
Revenue recognised in excess of amounts invoiced are classified as unbilled revenue. If amounts 
invoiced/collected from a customer are in excess of revenue recognised, a deferred revenue/advance 
income is recognised. Service revenue also includes revenue from interconnection/roaming charges for 
use of the company’s network by other operators for voice, data, messaging and signalling services. 
   
Revenue from long distance operations comprise voice services and bandwidth services (including 
installation), which are recognised on the provision of services, provided over the period of the respective 
arrangements. 
 
The company has interconnect agreements with local and foreign operators. This allows customers from 
either network to originate or terminate calls to each other’s network. Revenue is earned and recognised 
as per bilateral agreements when other operators’ calls are terminated to the Company’s network i.e. 
when the service is rendered.  
 
As part of the mobile money services, the Company earns commission from merchants for facilitating 
recharges, bill payments and other merchant payments. It also earns commissions on the transfer of 
money from one customer wallet to another. Such commission is recognised as revenue at a point in time 
on fulfilment of these services by the company. 
 

(c) Customer loyalty programme 
The Company has a customer loyalty programme through which credits (points) are awarded to 
customers on recharges. These credits (points) entitle customers to data, sms and voice services upon 
redemption which creates a material right and is therefore considered as a separate performance 
obligation. Revenue on customer loyalty is recognised on the basis of the fair value of the consideration 
received or receivable in respect of the initial sale allocated for award credits (points) and the 
consideration allocated to the award points is measured by reference to their respective fair value. If the 
Company supplies the awards, it recognises the consideration allocated to award points as revenue when 
award points are redeemed and the obligation to supply the awards is fulfilled.   
 
A contract liability is recognised for revenue relating to the loyalty points at the time of the initial sales 
transaction. If a third party supplies the awards, the Company assesses whether it is acting in the capacity 
of a principal or agent in the transaction, in which case, it measures revenue as the net amount of the 
difference between the consideration allocated to the award points and the amount payable to the third 
party for supplying the awards. Where the award is supplied by the Company, it measures revenue as the 
gross consideration allocated to the award points and recognises the revenue when the obligation is 
fulfilled.  
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3.10 Revenue recognition (cont’d) 
 
(d) Interest income 

For all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and interest bearing financial assets, classified 
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, interest income is recognised using the Effective 
Interest Rate (EIR), which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through 
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net carrying 
amount of the financial asset. Interest income is included in ‘Finance income’ in the statement of profit 
or loss and comprehensive income. 

 
(e) Equipment sales 

Equipment sales mainly pertain to sale of telecommunications equipment and related accessories for 
which revenue is recognised when the control of equipment is transferred to the customer i.e. 
transferred at a point in time. 

 
(f) Customer acquisition cost 

The Company recognises the cost it incurs to obtain a contract with a customer as an asset in the period 
these costs are incurred. The amount is amortised over the average anticipated customer life in the profit 
or loss. The unamortised amount is presented in the statement of financial position as “Other assets”. 
The churn rate is used to estimate the average customer life. 

 
3.11 Taxation 
 Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 
 
 Current income tax 

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as 
reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or 
deductible in other years and it also excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The payment 
made in excess/ (shortfall)of the income tax obligation for the respective periods are recognised in the 
statement of financial position under income tax assets/income tax liabilities, respectively. 
 
Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount 
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rate and tax laws used to 
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Current 
income tax relating to items recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity or other comprehensive 
income and not in profit or loss. The Company periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns 
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes 
provisions where appropriate. 
 
Any interest, related to accrued liabilities for potential tax assessments are not included in income tax 
charge or (credit), but are rather recognised within finance costs. 
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3.11 Taxation (cont’d) 

 
A provision is recognised for those matters for which the tax determination is uncertain but it is 
considered probable that there will be a future outflow of funds to a tax authority. The provisions are 
measured at the best estimate of the amount expected to become payable or based on expected value 
approach, as applicable and are presented within current tax liabilities. The assessment is based on the 
judgement of tax professionals within the company supported by previous experience in respect of such 
activities and in certain cases based on specialist independent tax advice. 
 
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the company has a legally enforceable right to      
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 
 
Minimum tax is which is computed at 0.5% of gross turnover. This is in line with the provisions of Section 
33 of Company Income Tax Act (CITA) which imposes a minimum tax where company has no taxable 
profits, or the tax payable is less than the minimum tax computed. 
 

(a) Deferred tax 
Deferred tax liability is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases 
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets 
are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused 
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. 
However, the deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability 
in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither 
accounting nor taxable profit nor loss 

 
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the 
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date 
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the 
deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year 
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside 
profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the 
underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.      
 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off 
current tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable 
entity and the same taxation authority.  
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3.11 Taxation (cont’d) 
 
(b) Current tax and deferred tax for the year 

Current and deferred tax are recognised in statement of profit or loss, except when they relate to items 
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and 
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where 
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is 
included in the accounting for the business combination. 

 
(c) Value added tax 

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value added tax, except: 
 

i) When the value added tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the 
tax authority, is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense 
item, as applicable 

ii) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of value added tax included. 
 
The net amount of value added tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as 
part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position. 

 

3.12 Borrowing costs 
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with the 
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production 
of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are 
capitalised as part of the cost of the respective assets. The Company capitalises borrowing costs on 
qualifying assets that takes more than one year to get ready for use. All other borrowing costs are 
expensed in the year they are incurred.  

 

3.13 Provisions and contingencies 
 

(a) Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result 
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and 
the amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated. 
 

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the 
relevant obligation, using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money (if the impact of discounting is significant) and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in 
the provision due to un-winding of the discount sale due to the passage of time is recognised within 
finance costs. 
 

Provision for legal matters 
The company is involved in various legal matters, the outcome of which may not be favourable to the 
company. Management, in consultation with legal advisers, assesses the likelihood that a pending claim 
will succeed. The company recognises a provision in cases where it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligations arising from such 
claims. 
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3.13 Provision and Contingencies (cont’d) 

 
Asset retirement obligation (ARO) 
AROs are recognised for those lease arrangements where the company has an obligation at the end of 
the lease period to restore the leased premises to a condition similar to that at inception of the lease.  
AROs are provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation and are recognised as 
part of the cost of that particular asset. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed 
annually and any change in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are adjusted against 
the cost of the asset. 
 

(b) Contingencies 
A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation 
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a 
present obligation in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or 
disclosure is made. Contingent assets are not recognised unless virtually certain and disclosed only where 
an inflow of economic benefits is probable. 

 
3.14 Government grants 

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received 
and all attached conditions will be complied with (The company has grant majorly base Transceiver 
Stations constructed at qualifying location). The grant is granted by the Federal Government of Nigeria 
under the Universal Service Provision Fund (USPF) Projects for; 
 

(a) BTS Expansion Project for the construction of BTS in rural and unserved areas where there are 
currently no service providers  

(b) Community Communications Centre (CCC) project for the establishment of CCCs in 109 rural 
communities nationwide to provide internet access, voice, ICT training, emergency calls and other 
services; and  

(c) The School Access Programme for the provision of internet enabled personal computers and internet 
access to participating schools.  

 
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income over the period necessary to match 
the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. When the grant relates to 
an asset, it is recognised as deferred income and released to income in equal amounts over the expected 
useful life of the related asset. 
 

3.15 Dividends  
Dividends to shareholders of the company are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity, in the 
year in which the dividends are approved by the shareholders. Interim dividends are deducted from  
the retained earnings when they are paid. 
 

3.16 Earnings per share 
The Company’s Earnings per Share (‘EPS’) is determined based on the net income attributable to the 
shareholders.  Basic earnings per share are computed using the weighted average number of shares 
outstanding during the year.  
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3.17 Cash and cash equivalent 

 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, wallet balances, bank balances, cheques in hand and 
any deposits with original maturities of three months or less i.e. that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash and cash equivalents and subject to an insignificant risk of a change in value. However, 
for the purpose of the statement of cash flows, in addition to the above items, any bank overdrafts that 
are integral part of the Company’s cash management and balances held under mobile money trust are 
also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents. 

 
Term deposits with an original maturity of more than three months are presented within other bank 
balances. 

 
3.18 Treasury Share 

The company is the sponsoring entity of an Employee Benefit Trust (EBT) which is controlled by the 
Group. The company provides funds to the EBT to enable it to satisfy its objectives. The company’s equity 
instruments held by the EBT are accounted for as if they were the company’s own equity and are treated 
as treasury shares. Such treasury shares are recorded at cost and deducted from equity. Refer to Note 
26.3 for details of treasury shares held by the EBT. 
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4. Material accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions 

 
4.1 Judgements 

Under IFRS, the directors have adopted those accounting policies most appropriate to the Company’s 
circumstances for the purpose of presenting a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position, 
financial performance and cash flows. In determining and applying accounting policies, judgement is 
often required in respect of items where the choice of specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption 
to be followed could materially affect the reported results or net asset position of the Company should it 
later be determined that a different choice would be more appropriate. 

 
Deferred tax 
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is 
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely 
timing and the level of future taxable profits, together with any future tax planning strategies. Refer to 
Note 15 for the disclosure of deferred tax assets recognition. 

 
4.2 Estimates and assumptions 

The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial 
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, 
however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the 
Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur. 

 
The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, 
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about 
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the 
carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods. 

 
(a) Revenue recognition and presentation 

The Company assesses its revenue arrangements in line with the requirements of IFRS 15 – Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers which requires the identification of performance obligation, allocation of 
transaction price amongst performance obligation, and recognising revenue upon satisfaction of each 
performance obligation agreed with the customer. The Company also assess whether it has exposure to 
sale of goods or the rendering of services, in order to determine if it is acting as a principal or as an agent. 
When deciding the most appropriate basis for presenting revenue or costs of revenue, both the legal 
form and substance of the agreement between the Company and its business partners are reviewed to 
determine each party’s respective role in the transaction. Where the Company’s role in a transaction is 
that of principal, revenue derived from these transactions are reported gross while the commission is 
expensed through profit or loss. Otherwise, the net revenue is reported.  

 
Customer loyalty programme 

The Company estimates the fair value of points awarded under the loyalty management programme by 
applying statistical techniques. Inputs to the model include making assumptions about expected 
redemption rates, the mix of products that will be available for redemption in the future and customer 
preferences. As at 31 December 2024, the estimated liability for unredeemed points was approximately 
N361.66 million (2023: N258.08 million) disclosed as part of deferred revenue liability. 
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4. Material accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (cont’d) 
 
4.2 Estimates and assumptions (cont’d) 
 
(b) Multiple obligation with customers 

The Company has entered into certain multiple performance obligation revenue arrangements. These 
arrangements involve the delivery or performance of multiple products, services or rights to use assets. 
The Company evaluates all deliverables in an arrangement to determine whether they represent 
separately identifiable components at the inception of the arrangement. The evaluation is done based 
on the criteria as to whether the deliverables in the arrangement have value to the customer on a 
standalone basis. Total consideration related to the multiple element arrangements is allocated among 
the different components based on their relative fair values (i.e., ratio of the fair value of each element 
to the aggregated fair value of the bundled deliverables). 
 

(c) Customer acquisition cost 
IFRS 15 requires to recognize an asset for customer acquisition cost if the customer life is more than 12 
months and then amortise that asset over the customer life. Customer Acquisition costs are cost which 
would not have been incurred if no new customer would have been acquired. Management has assessed 
these costs to be the following: Gross acquisition commission costs, KYC costs and SIM and related 
packing costs. 
 

(d) Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 
The Company carries its property, plant and equipment at cost in the statement of financial position. 
Estimates and assumptions made to determine their carrying value and related depreciation are critical 
to the Company’s financial position and performance. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is 
derived after determining an estimate of an asset’s expected useful life and the expected residual value 
at the end of its life. The useful lives and residual values of the assets are determined by management at 
the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically. The lives are based on historical experience with 
similar assets as well as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in 
technology.  

 
Multiple element contracts with vendors 
The Company has entered into multiple element contracts with vendors for supply of goods and 
rendering of services. The consideration paid may be determined independent of the value of supplies 
received and services availed. Accordingly, the supplies and services are accounted for based on their 
relative fair values to the overall consideration. The supplies with finite life under the contracts (as 
defined in the material accounting policies) have been accounted under Property, Plant and Equipment 
and/or as Intangible assets, since the Company has economic ownership in these assets. The Company 
believes that the current treatment represents the substance of the arrangement. 
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4.  Material accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (cont’d) 
 
4.2 Estimates and assumptions (cont’d) 
 
(e) Impairment of non-financial assets   

Non-financial assets include majorly property, plant and equipment, right of use and intangible assets. 
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable 
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less 
costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length 
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. 
The value in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow model. The cash flows are derived from 
the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet 
committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the cash 
generating unit being tested. The recoverable amount is most sensitive to the discount rate used for the 
discounted cash flow model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for 
extrapolation purposes.  
 

Allowance for accounts receivable and advances 
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by 
appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. A large number of minor receivables is 
grouped into homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. The Company writes off 
individual trade receivables when management considers them as uncollectible. The assessment of the 
age analysis of receivable balances couple with the use of past experience in the calculation of 
impairments, involve high degree of estimation. 

 
(f) Measurement of loans and borrowings  

The Company obtained all its loans at market rates, though tied to Nigeria Interbank Offer Rate (NIBOR) 
and London Interbank Offer Rate (LIBOR) for local and foreign loans respectively. The re-measurement of 
those loans are based on a floating interest rates using weighted average of 90 and 180 days of previous 
NIBOR and LIBOR for repayments of interest while principal is on a straight line basis over the terms of 
the instruments. Market rate assumes re-measurement using the Effective Interest Rates (EIR) as against 
floating rates used by management. The judgement is that management has used floating interest rates 
which approximates to EIR, the impact which is not significantly different from the fair value of those 
loans. The Company’s financial assets such as staff loans are recognised at their fair value amount using 
applicable market rates and subsequently carried at amortised cost. 

 
(g) Asset Retirement Obligations (ARO) 

In determining the present value of the ARO provision the Company uses technical estimates to 
determine the expected cost of dismantlement and removal of the infrastructure equipment from the 
site and the expected timing of these costs. The timing and amount of future expenditures are reviewed 
annually together with the discount rates used in discounting the cash flows. The discount rate used to 
calculate the obligation at the end of 2024 was 13.82% (2023: 13.82%). The discount rate represents the 
real rate determined using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and those risks specific to the liability. 

 
(h) Inventory Obsolescence 

The Company provides for obsolete and slow-moving inventory based on management estimates of the 
usability of inventory. 
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4.  Material accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions (cont’d) 
 
4.2 Estimates and assumptions (cont’d) 

 

(i) Fair value measurement of financial instruments 
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial 
position cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using 
valuation techniques including the discounted cash flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are 
taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is 
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, 
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect the reported fair 
value of financial instruments.  

 
(j) Taxation provisions 

The Company’s current tax provision relates to management’s assessment of the amount of tax payable 
as at the reporting date based on the Company’s performance during the financial year. 

 
5. Adoption of new and revised standards 
 
5.1 Standards that became effective on 1 January 2024 

No new International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) issued during the year is applicable to the 
Company applied. Amendment to existing IFRS’s have been applied by the Company as required, 
however, these amendments do not have any material impacts on the company’s financial statements. 
The list of newly issued amendments is as follows 
 

5.1.1    Amendments to IFRS 16 - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 
The amendments in IFRS 16 specify the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease 
liability arising in a sale and leaseback transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any 
amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains. 
 
The amendments had no impact on the Company’s financial statements. 
 

5.1.2 Amendments to IAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current             
The amendments to IAS 1 specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current.  

 
The amendments clarify: 
 

• What is meant by a right to defer settlement  

• That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period  

• That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right  

• That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument would the 
terms of a liability not impact its classification. 

 
In addition, an entity is required to disclose when a liability arising from a loan agreement is classified as 
non-current and the entity’s right to defer settlement is contingent on compliance with future covenants 
within twelve months. 
 
The amendments do not have an impact on the classification of the Company’s liabilities 
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5. Adoption of new and revised standards (cont’d) 
 
5.1.3 Supplier Finance Arrangements - Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 

The amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures clarify 
the characteristics of supplier finance arrangements and require additional disclosure of such 
arrangements. The disclosure requirements in the amendments are intended to assist users of financial 
statements in understanding the effects of supplier finance arrangements on an entity’s liabilities, cash 
flows and exposure to liquidity risk. 

 
The amendments do not have an impact on the on the Company’s liabilities as operations is yet to 
commence 
 

5.2       Standards issued but not yet effective  
The standards and interpretations that are issued and not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the 
Company’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Company intends to adopt these standards, if 
applicable, when they become effective. These pronouncements have been issued by IASB, but are not 
yet effective: 
 

5.2.1 Amendments to IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates titled Lack of Exchangeability 
The amendments specify how to assess whether a currency is exchangeable, and how to determine the 
exchange rate when it is not. 

 
The amendments state that a currency is exchangeable into another currency when an entity is able to 
obtain the other currency within a time frame that allows for a normal administrative delay and through 
a market or exchange mechanism in which an exchange transaction would create enforceable rights and 
obligations. 

 
An entity assesses whether a currency is exchangeable into another currency at a measurement date and 
for a specified purpose. If an entity is able to obtain no more than an insignificant amount of the other 
currency at the measurement date for the specified purpose, the currency is not exchangeable into the 
other currency. 

 
The assessment of whether a currency is exchangeable into another currency depends on an entity’s 
ability to obtain the other currency and not on its intention or decision to do so. When a currency is not 
exchangeable into another currency at a measurement date, an entity is required to estimate the spot 
exchange rate at that date. An entity’s objective in estimating the spot exchange rate is to reflect the rate 
at which an orderly exchange transaction would take place at the measurement date between market 
participants under prevailing economic conditions. 

 
The amendments do not specify how an entity estimates the spot exchange rate to meet that objective. 
An entity can use an observable exchange rate without adjustment or another estimation technique. 
Examples of an observable exchange rate include: 

 

• a spot exchange rate for a purpose other than that for which an entity assesses exchangeability 

• the first exchange rate at which an entity is able to obtain the other currency for the specified purpose 
after exchangeability of the currency is restored (first subsequent exchange rate). 
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5. Adoption of new and revised standards (cont’d) 

 
An entity using another estimation technique may use any observable exchange rate—including rates 
from exchange transactions in markets or exchange mechanisms that do not create enforceable rights 
and obligations—and adjust that rate, as necessary, to meet the objective as set out above. 
 
When an entity estimates a spot exchange rate because a currency is not exchangeable into another 
currency, the entity is required to disclose information that enables users of its financial statements to 
understand how the currency not being exchangeable into the other currency affects, or is expected to 
affect, the entity’s financial performance, financial position and cash flows. 
 
The amendments add a new appendix as an integral part of IAS 21. The appendix includes application 
guidance on the requirements introduced by the amendments. The amendments also add new Illustrative 
Examples accompanying IAS 21, which illustrate how an entity might apply some of the requirements in 
hypothetical situations based on the limited facts presented. 
 
In addition, the IASB made consequential amendments to IFRS 1 to align with and refer to the revised IAS 
21 for assessing exchangeability. 
 
The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025, with 
earlier application permitted. An entity is not permitted to apply the amendments retrospectively. 
Instead, an entity is required to apply the specific transition provisions included in the amendments. 
 
The directors of the company anticipate that the application of these amendments may have an impact 
on the company’s financial statements in future periods. 

 
5.2.2 IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements 
 IFRS 18 replaces IAS 1, carrying forward many of the requirements in IAS 1 unchanged and 

complementing them with new requirements. In addition, some IAS 1 paragraphs have been moved to 
IAS 8 and IFRS 7. Furthermore, the IASB has made minor amendments to IAS 7 and IAS 33 Earnings per 
Share. IFRS 18 introduces new requirements to: 

 

• present specified categories and defined subtotals in the statement of profit or loss 

• provide disclosures on management-defined performance measures (MPMs) in the Notes to the 
Financial Statements 

• improve aggregation and disaggregation. 
 

An entity is required to apply IFRS 18 for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, 
with earlier application permitted. The amendments to IAS 7 and IAS 33, as well as the revised IAS 8 and 
IFRS 7, become effective when an entity applies IFRS 18. IFRS 18 requires retrospective application with 
specific transition provisions. 
 
The directors of the company anticipate that the application of these amendments may have an impact 
on the company’s financial statements in future periods. 
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5. Adoption of new and revised standards (cont’d) 
 
5.2.3 IFRS 19 Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures 

IFRS 19 permits an eligible subsidiary to provide reduced disclosures when applying IFRS Accounting 
Standards in its financial statements. 
 
A subsidiary is eligible for the reduced disclosures if it does not have public accountability and its 
ultimate or any intermediate parent produces consolidated financial statements available for public use 
that comply with IFRS Accounting Standards. 

 
IFRS 19 is optional for subsidiaries that are eligible and sets out the disclosure requirements for 
subsidiaries that elect to apply it. An entity is only permitted to apply IFRS 19 if, at the end of the 
reporting period: 

 

• it is a subsidiary (this includes an intermediate parent) 

• it does not have public accountability, and 

• its ultimate or any intermediate parent produces consolidated financial statements available for 
public use that comply with IFRS Accounting Standards. 

 
              A subsidiary has public accountability if: 

 

• its debt or equity instruments are traded in a public market or it is in the process of issuing such 
instruments for trading in a public market (a domestic or foreign stock exchange or an over-the-
counter market, including local and regional markets), or 

• it holds assets in a fiduciary capacity for a broad group of outsiders as one of its primary businesses 
(for example, banks, credit unions, insurance entities, securities brokers/dealers, mutual funds and 
investment banks often meet this second criterion). 

 
Eligible entities can apply IFRS 19 in their consolidated, separate or individual financial statements. An 
eligible intermediate parent that does not apply IFRS 19 in its consolidated financial statement may do so 
in its separate financial statements. 
 
The new standard is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027 with earlier 
application permitted. If an entity elects to apply IFRS 19 for a reporting period earlier than the reporting 
period in which it first applies IFRS 18, it is required to apply a modified set of disclosure requirements set 
out in an appendix to IFRS 19. If an entity elects to apply IFRS 19 for an annual reporting period before it 
applied the amendments to IAS 21, it is not required to apply the disclosure requirements in IFRS 19 with 
regard to Lack of Exchangeability. 
 
The directors of the company do not anticipate that IFRS 19 will apply to the company’s financial 
statements in future periods.  
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6 Revenue from operations 

     2024  2023 
     N’000  N’000 
        

Airtime revenue (Note 6(a))     1,213,400,438   898,220,884  
Interconnect revenue (Note 22(a))     212,734,498   163,454,936  
SIM connection     6,151,354   4,110,425  
Roaming     10,216,464   6,348,487  
Leased line revenue (Note 6(b))     21,277,640   13,409,787  
Device sales     3,344,868   2,530,768  

 
    

 
1,467,125,262  1,088,075,287 

 
The Company derives its revenue from contracts with customers for the transfer of goods and services in 
the above product lines. 

 
(a) Airtime revenue includes revenue from voice, data and value added services earned by the Company. 

Airtime revenue is stated net of upfront commissions paid to channel partners of N45.22 billion (2023: 
N36.58 billion). 
 

(b) Leased line income relates to income generated from bandwidth and information technology capacity 
sold to corporate customers. The rentals are paid on monthly or quarterly basis as per the contract terms 
and recognised over the periods of connectivity. These rentals have no escalation clauses and they are 
cancellable at the option of the customer. There are no future commitments or restrictions placed upon 
the customer by entering into contract. This is not a lease as it did not meet definition of a non-cancellable 
lease. Hence, these are assessed as a service income rather than a lease income. 
 

 
7 Cost of sales 

      2024  2023 
      N’000  N’000 
 Transmission cost     410,197,964   256,749,255  
 Interconnect cost (Note 22(a))     159,801,183  133,813,555 
 Device cost     8,505,077   3,422,279  
 Regulatory fees (Note 7(b))     40,097,808   30,771,856  
 Roaming cost     4,423,580  2,673,360 
 Bandwidth cost     8,282,712   3,709,603  
 VAS content provider cost     18,568,398   14,550,023  
 Other dealer commissions (Note 7(a))     3,501,452   2,339,608  

  
  

 
 

 
653,378,174  448,029,539 

 
(a) Other dealer commissions such as tailing commission are other commissions given to dealers other than 

one-off commissions accounted as customer acquisition costs and upfront commissions netted off from 
revenue in Note 6 (a). 
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7.   Cost of sales (cont’d) 

 
(b) Regulatory fees – This includes annual operating levy, spectrum fees and annual numbering plan fees 

paid to Nigerian Communications Commission (NCC).  
      2024  2023 
      N’000  N’000 
 NCC annual levy     33,314,691   24,236,321  
 Spectrum costs     4,357,617   4,282,207  
 Annual numbering fees     2,425,500   2,253,328  

  
  

 
 

 
40,097,808    30,771,856 

 

8 Other income 
      2024  2023 
      N’000  N’000 
 Sale of scrap & Miscellaneous (Note 8(a))     660,606  467,839 
 Gain on disposal of property, plant & equipment (Note 17(a))  4,832,754  4,606,294 
 Government grants income (Note 8(b) & Note 30(a))     32,957  25,623 
 Bad debt recovered     9,316  9,865 

 
 

    
 

5,535,633    5,109,621 
 

(a) Sale of scrap & Miscellaneous items relate to network scrap items sold to third parties and liabilities 
written back.  

 

(b) Government grants income relates to amount amortised during the year on deferred grants. 
Unamortised portion of the grant is shown in Note 30(a). 
 

9 Selling and marketing costs 

     2024  2023 

     N’000  N’000 
        

Customer acquisition expenses (Note 9(a), 23(c))     22,083,889  14,399,868 
Advertising media     7,298,957  5,041,220 
Dealer merchandising (POS)     4,700,233  2,479,695 
Promotional expenses     3,311,952  918,403 
Field marketing     1,320,271  2,199,153 
Selling and marketing campaigns     1,051,721  1,192,187 
Airtel relationship centre expenses     331,506  229,780 
Repairs and maintenance     288,489  70,324 
Sales force training     73,233  152,619 
Printing     41,659    88,387 

 
  

 
 

  
 40,501,910    26,771,636 

 

(a) Customer acquisition expenses: These relates to amortisation of one-off costs such as sim card, customer 
verification/know your customer (KYC) and other SIM related costs which are directly identifiable and 
incurred solely on acquisition of new subscribers. The Company expects to recover these costs by means 
of earning the revenue from those customers over the customer life of 32 months. The deferred portion 
is detailed in Other assets - Note 23(c).  
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10 Administrative expenses 

     2024  2023 
     N’000  N’000 
        
Customer service delivery     1,601,804  1,106,443 
Rent     748,696  602,996 
Bank charges     1,802,271  1,461,287 
Legal fees     608,851  819,668 
Statutory audit fees*     139,781  124,373 
Management Fee (including VAT)     3,062,636  25,376,121 
Conveyance     1,029,543  805,696 
Office maintenance and utilities     1,708,906  793,734 
Insurance     500,985  255,995 
Internal audit fees     421,866  171,653 
Directors' fees     41,112  34,435 
Subscriptions     631,843  53,566 
Staff Welfare     1,684,729  830,393 
Consumables     74,700  132,701 
Other administrative expenses**     108,633  214,020 

 
  

 
 

 
14,166,356  32,783,081 

 
* The audit fees represent auditors’ remuneration as agreed with Deloitte & Touche for the final audits 
of Airtel Networks Limited for the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 respectively. The 
independent auditors report was signed by Onyebuchi Chizoba and Stella Mba, Partners with the firm, 
with Financial Reporting Council (FRC) membership numbers FRC/2013/PRO/ICAN/004/00000000869 
and FRC/2013/PRO/ICAN/004/00000001348 respectively. Airtel has engaged Deloitte for the review and 
attestation of ICFR for the year 2024 for a fee of N15million. 

 
** Other administrative expenses relate to courier expenses &maintenance charges N 29.3 million 
(2023: N 7.3 million) and corporate social responsibility donations N 79.3 million (2023: N 206.7 million) 

 
11     Other operating expenses 

     2024  2023 
     N’000  N’000 
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment - (Note 17)  95,427,668  73,286,651 
Depreciation of right of use assets (Note 19)     164,758,959  89,201,455 
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 18)     32,368,341  28,411,586 
Employee costs*     27,745,488  20,964,238 
Travel costs     1,191,554  636,178 
Inventories written down     1,488,783  72,937 
(Reversal)/Allowance of trade receivables  (20,967)  3,760 
Other Expenses  -  36,003 

   
 

 
 

322,959,826  212,612,808 

 
 
 



Airtel Networks Limited 
Annual Report and Financial Statements  

For the year ended 31 December 2024 

52 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
11 Other operating expenses (cont’d) 
 

*Employee cost 
      2024  2023 
      N’000  N’000 
 Basic salaries     15,663,372  12,650,403 

 Allowances     5,593,557  4,177,729 
 Regulatory Contribution*     1,649,726  1,007,395 
 Bonus and incentives     4,737,130  2,983,599 
 Other employee cost**      101,703   145,112  

      
 

27,745,488   20,964,238 
 

*Regulatory contribution relates to Employer Pension Contribution, Industrial Trust Fund and Nigeria Social 
Insurance Trust Fund 
 

**Other employee cost relates to employee professional and social subscription payment during the year. 
 
Information relating to employees is detailed in Note 40. 

 
12. Finance income 

 
 

    2024  2023 
 

 
    N’000  N’000 

 Interest income - banks     400,219  368,678 
 Interest Income - Subsidiaries     414,365  391,367 
 Interest income – fixed deposit     -  694,005  

 
 

  
 

 
 

814,584  1,454,050 
 

Interest income - Employee loans* 
  

 
 

 
13,179  9,800 

 

   
 

 
 

827,763  1,463,850 

  
* The employee loan is interest free and it is a notional adjustment as per IFRS 9.  

 
13.  Finance costs 

 

 Interest on debts and borrowings (Note 28(a))     112,050,308  24,160,747 
 Interest on trade import facility*  -  4,648,469 
 Interest on lease Liability (Note 31(c))     228,854,456  65,830,393 
 Other finance charges (Note 29.1)**     57,845  2,238 
 Interest on long service award & leave encashment (Note 32)     6,918  5,492 

 
     

 

340,969,527  94,647,339 
 

*No new interest charge for trade facility in current year. All outstanding interest accrued for in prior 
period were paid during the year. 
 

  *Other finance charges relate to unwinding of discount for the asset retirement obligation (Note 29.1).  
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13. Finance costs (cont’d) 

 
13a.  Interest Paid 

   2024  2023 
   N’000  N’000 
 Interest paid on debts and borrowings  104,212,566  20,966,730 
 Interest paid on trade import facility  6,400,785  1,672,220 
 Interest paid on lease (Note 31(a))  229,992,622  65,980,498 

 

     
 

340,605,973  88,619,448 

 
13b    Net Derivative and foreign exchange losses       
  2024  2023 
  N’000  N’000 

Net Derivative and foreign exchange losses  571,258,263  663,592,844 
 
In February 2024, the CBN announced changes in its closing rate calculation methodology amid some 
other announcements which impacted the exchange rate of the Nigerian Naira to the USD.  The Nigerian 
Naira plunged by about 62% due to announcement from NGN 952 per USD at the end of December 2023 
and has fallen to N1,545 at the end of December, 2024. 
 
During the year, the devaluation of the Naira against the US Dollar resulted in a foreign exchange loss of 
N571.26b (2023: N663.59b) on the translation of US Dollar monetary items held by the company at the 
new exchange rate referenced above. 
 
This change announced by CBN led to a material impact on the company’s financial statements and the 
impact of this change is of such size, nature and incidence that the results need to be presented before 
and after this impact to assess the underlying performance of the company and to improve the 
comparability between periods. 

 
14. Loss before tax is after charging/(crediting):   
 

       2024  2023 
       N’000  N’000 
 Depreciation of Property, Plant & Equipment (Note 17(b))   95,427,668  73,286,651 
 Depreciation of right of use asset (Note 19)      164,758,959  89,201,455 
 Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 18)      32,368,341   28,411,586  
 Finance Income (Note 12)      827,763  1,463,850 
 Finance costs (Note 13)      340,969,527  94,647,339 
 Net Derivative & foreign exchange losses (Note 13b)      571,258,263   663,592,844 
 Impairment of trade and other receivables (Note 22e)   1,837,590  1,011,654 
 Inventories written down (Note 11)      1,488,784   72,937  
 Statutory audit fee (Note 10)      139,781  124,373 
 Directors’ fees (Note 10)      41,112   34,435  
 (Gain)/Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipment (Note  17(a)) (4,832,754)   (4,606,294) 
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15. Taxation 
 
(a) Tax expense 

The income tax charge for the year has been computed after adjusting for certain items of expenditure 
and income, which are not deductible or chargeable for tax purposes, and comprises: 

  
    2024  2023 

     N’000  N’000 
        

(i)       Minimum Tax     7,371,252  - 

  
  2024  2023  
  N’000  N’000 

      
(ii)     Income tax   -  21,152,141 
          Education tax   -  6,303,049 

National Information Technology Development tax (Note 15(c)(i))  -  - 
          Nigeria Police Trust Fund Levy       -     - 
          Prior year under provision (Note 15(c)(ii))   -  - 

National Agency for Science and Engineering Infrastructure  Levy 
(Note 15(c)(iii)) 

- 
 

- 

         Capital Gains Tax   467,115  385,436 
   467,115  27,840,626 

Deferred tax benefit (Note 15(d)) 
  

   
(157,255,093)  

   
(159,349,034) 

   (156,787,978)  (131,508,408) 

 
(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate  

 2024  2023 
 N’000  %  N’000  % 

Loss before tax  (471,582,988)    (384,800,143)   

        
Income tax using statutory tax rate (141,474,896)  30%   (115,440,043)  30%  
Impact of tertiary education tax -  0%    6,303,049  -2%   
Impact of NITDA Tax      -   0%        -   0%  
Impact of Nigeria Police Trust Fund Levy   -      0%     -      0%  
National Agency for Science and Engineering 
Infrastructure Levy 

 
-  

  
0%  

 
-  

  
0% 

Effect of tax incentives -  0%  (2,519,477)  1% 
Effect of proceed taxed under capital gains tax (934,230)  0%  (770,877)  0% 
Non-deductible expenses (108,375)  0%  (2,940)  0% 
Impact of Rate change (1,328,509)  0%  (1,775,158)  0% 
Effect of IFRS 16 lease and other items (1,305,642)  0%    (1,318,283)  0% 
Effect of change in education tax from 2.5% to 
3% (2023: 2.5% to 3%) on Non-PPE Items 

(11,636,326) 
 

2% 
 

(15,984,679) 
 

4% 

 

 
(156,787,978)  32%  (131,508,408)  33% 
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15.   Taxation (cont’d) 
 
(c) Movement in Income tax payable 

 
(i) National Information Technology Development Agency (NITDA) Act  

National Information technology tax is imposed on companies engaging in information communication 
technology. Section 12(2) of the National Information Technology Development Agency (NITDA) Act 
provides that certain companies are under obligation to pay information technology tax and such 
companies include telecommunications companies. The tax is payable by specified companies with 
turnover of N100 million and above.  Tax is 1% of profit before tax for the year. The tax when paid is tax 
deductible for company income tax purposes. NITDA has therefore been included in the tax note. 
 

(ii) Prior year under provision 
The Company provides for current tax in the books on a monthly basis. However, final tax returns is based 
on the audited financial position for the year.  

 
(iii)  National Agency for Science and Engineering Infrastructure Levy 

National Agency for Science and Engineering Infrastructure levy is imposed on companies operating in 
banking, mobile telecommunication, ICT, oil and gas, aviation and maritime industries with turnover of 
N100m and above. Finance Act 2022 provides clarity on companies liable to the National Agency for Science 
and Engineering Infrastructure levy of 0.25% of profit before tax. The tax when paid is tax deductible for 
company income tax purposes. NASEI has therefore been included in the tax note.   
    
 
 
 

 

     2024  2023 
     N’000  N’000 
Balance as at 1 January     30,791,586  44,260,000 
        
Charge for the year:        
Income tax     -  21,152,141 
Education tax     -  6,303,049 
Minimum tax     7,371,252  - 
NITDA (Note 15(c)(i))     -  - 
Nigeria Police Trust Fund Levy      -  - 
Prior year under provision(Note 15(c)(ii)     -  - 
Capital gains tax     467,115  385,436 
National Agency for Science and Engineering 
Infrastructure Levy (Note 15(c)(iii)   

 
 

       - 
 

       - 

     7,838,367  27,840,626 
        

Payments during the year 
 

 
 

 
 

(25,448,617)  
   

(39,880,334) 
Withholding tax credit notes utilized     (1,206,929)     (1,428,706) 

Balance as 31 December     11,974,407  30,791,586 



Airtel Networks Limited 
Annual Report and Financial Statements  

For the year ended 31 December 2024 

56 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
 

15.   Taxation (cont’d) 
 

(d) The movement in the deferred tax asset/(liabilities) account was as follows: 
 

     2024  2023 

     N’000  N’000 
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) at 1 January     155,983,824  (3,365,210) 
        
Movement during the year:        
Deferred tax (expenses)/benefit:        
  Property, plant and equipment     30,037,076  (16,581,959) 
  Foreign exchange     56,618,711  168,845,781 
  Employee benefits     229,114  55,658 
  Provisions     1,324,146  457,994 
  IFRS 16 - lease and deferred gain     19,548,515  5,809,292 
  Losses     49,497,531  - 

     157,255,093  158,586,766 

Impact of Rate change:        
  Foreign exchange loss     -  425,620 
  Employee benefits     -  8,902 
  Provisions     -  68,068 
 IFRS 16 - lease and deferred gain     -  259,678 

     -  762,268 

        
Deferred tax assets at 31 December     313,238,917  155,983,824 

 
Deferred tax assets are attributable to the following: 
 
Property, plant and equipment     (40,864,937)  (70,902,013) 
Foreign exchange     253,555,430  196,936,719 
Employee benefits     872,334  643,220 
Provisions     6,040,444  4,716,298 
IFRS 16 - lease and deferred gain     44,138,114  24,589,600 
Losses     49,497,532  - 

Net deferred tax assets     313,238,917  155,983,824 

 
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available 
against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and 
unused tax losses can be utilised. The Company has, accordingly, recognised a deferred tax asset of 
N313.24 billion (2023: N155.98 billion deferred tax asset) relating to net deductible temporary difference 
that are considered to be realisable against the Company’s taxable profits, which is expected to arise in 
future periods. The unrecognised portion of deferred tax asset as at 31 December 2024 is Nil (2023: Nil). 
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16. Earnings per share 

 
Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit attributable to ordinary equity 
holders of the parent by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. 

 
The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic earnings per share computation: 

  
    2024  2023 

     N’000  N’000 
        

Net Loss attributable to ordinary equity holders     (322,166,263)  (253,291,735) 

        

     
Number of 

shares  
Number of 

shares 
     '000  '000 

Weighted average number of shares N1 each (Note 
16(a))     12,194,501  

 
12,194,501 

        

Earnings per share (N)     (26.42)  (20.77) 

 
There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares between 
the reporting date and the date of completion of these financial statements. There was no dilutive 
instrument during the year.  
 
There was no change in basic and diluted earnings per share as a result of changes in accounting policy. 

 
16 (a) Weighted average number of shares 
 2024 2023  

Outstanding 
shares 

 
Period 

covered 

 
Weighted 

shares 
Outstanding 

shares 

 
Period 

covered 

 
Weighted 

shares 
 N’000 %  N’000 N’000 %  N’000 
          

Shares 12,194,501 100  12,194,501      12,194,501 100   12,194,501     

Weighted Balance 
   

 100   12,194,501    100   12,194,501 
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17. Property, plant and equipment  

 

GSM Equipment 

Information 
System 

Equipment 

 
 

Land 

 
 

Building 
Office Furniture 

& Equipment 

 
Motor 

Vehicles 
Capital work 
in- progress 

 
 

Total 

Cost N ’000 N ’000 N ’000 N ’000 N ’000 N ’000 N ’000 N ’000 
As at 1 Jan 2023 916,178,289 77,682,013 1,236,246 7,155,191 13,164,396 268,221     19,991,543 1,035,675,899 
Additions     - - - -    - - 190,443,400 190,443,400 

Disposals (16,376,156) (356,035) - (12,066) (170,042) - - (16,914,299) 
Transfers from CWIP 135,598,445 3,744,336 -  511,094 163,125 (140,017,000) - 

Balance at 31 Dec 2023 1,035,400,578 81,070,314 1,236,246 7,143,125 13,505,448 431,346 70,417,943 1,209,205,000 
         

Additions - - - - - - 267,429,071 267,429,071 

Disposals (957,658) (85,952) - - (8,758) (157,496) - (1,209,864) 

Transfers from CWIP 247,586,225 10,120,296 - - 7,574,498 - (265,281,019) - 

Balance at 31 Dec 2024 1,282,029,145 91,104,658 1,236,246 7,143,125 21,071,188 273,850 72,565,995 1,475,424,207 

         
Accumulated 
Depreciation         
As at 1 Jan 2023     (529,135,361)  (69,758,695) - (5,475,247) (10,487,139)    (197,587) - (615,054,029) 
Depreciation (67,107,181) (4,959,683) - (196,944) (995,934) (26,909) - (73,286,651) 

Disposals 15,487,477 306,859 - 11,871 169,208 - - 15,975,415 

Balance at 31 Dec 2023     (580,755,065)          (74,411,519) - (5,660,320) (11,313,865)    (224,496) - (672,365,265) 

         

Depreciation (87,133,567) (5,508,345) - (195,894) (2,549,848) (40,014) - (95,427,668) 

Disposals 604,008 82,916 - - 8,549 112,045 - 807,518 

Balance at 31 Dec 2024 (667,284,624) (79,836,948) - (5,856,214) (13,855,164) (152,465) - (766,985,415) 

         
         
Net Book Value         

As at 31 Dec 2024 614,744,521 11,267,710 1,236,246 1,286,911 7,216,024 121,385 72,565,995 708,438,792 

         
As at 31 Dec 2023 454,645,513 6,658,795  1,236,246  1,482,805 2,191,583    206,850 70,417,943 536,839,735 
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17. Property, plant and equipment (cont’d) 
 

Capital Work in Progress Breakdown 

Particulars 2024 2023 

GSM Equipment 61,367,442 55,694,447 

Information Systems Equipment 1,966,609 2,574,318 

Land 8,126,566 8,117,677 

Office Furniture & Equipment 1,105,378 4,031,501 

Grand Total 72,565,995 70,417,943 

 
(a)  Disposal of property, plant and equipment   

    2024  2023  
    N’000  N’000 

Cost of assets disposed     1,209,864  16,914,299 
Accumulated depreciation of assets disposed     (807,518)  (15,975,415) 

Net book value of assets disposed     402,346  938,884 

        
Gain on sale of property, plant & equipment (Note 8)   4,832,754  4,606,294 

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment     4,832,754  4,606,294 

        
Sales proceeds on disposal     5,235,100  5,545,178 

 
(b) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is shown in the statement of profit or loss as follows: 
  

    2024  2023  
    N’000  N’000 

Operating expenses (Note 11)     95,427,668  73,286,651 

Total depreciation as per property, plant and equipment 
   

95,427,668 
  

73,286,651 

        
(c)  Capital Work in progress: 

The carrying value of the capital work in progress amounts to N72.57billion (2023: N70.42 billion). The 
land value in CWIP is undergoing title perfection before ready for use. 

 
 
(d) Impairment of property, plant and equipment 
 There is no impairment of property, plant and equipment during the year. 
 
(e) Assets pledged as security 

 All assets Debenture on the fixed assets of the company are shared pari-passu with all lenders managed 
by first trustees for the term loan facility. The terms loans are included in all-asset debenture while 
overdrafts are unsecured 

 
(f) Capitalised borrowing cost 

 There were no capitalization of borrowing cost in the year 
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18. Intangible assets 

 
Airtel Networks Limited was assigned Spectrum frequency licences: an additional 2X10MHz in the 
2600MHz band (4G/LTE, valid 26th January 2023 to 25 January 2033) and 100MHz in the 3500MHz band 
(5G, valid 1st March 2023 to 28 February 2033) each for a 10-year term. 

 
The Nigerian Communications Commission (NCC) discontinued the Digital Mobile Licence (DML) issued 
in February 2001 for a 15-year term.  However, the spectrum licences (900MHz and 1800MHz bands) 
originally bundled with the DML were subsumed under the Unified Access Service Licence (UASL) and 
renewed in November 2021 for another 10 years, from 1 December 2021 to 30 November 
2031.  Additionally, the UASL issued on 1 December 2006 for a 15-year term was renewed upon expiry 
for ten years, from 1 December 2021 to 30 November 2031. Separately, the NCC renewed Airtel’s 
spectrum licence in the 2100MHz band for 15 years until 30 April 2037. 
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18.  Intangible assets (cont’d) 
 

The movement on this account during the year for the Company was as follows: 
  

900 & 1800 
MHz Spectrum 

2600 MHz 
Spectrum 3500 MHz 

 
 

3G/2100 MHz 
Licence 

Software 
licence 

 
 

10 MHz 
Spectrum 

National 
Destination 

Code 

Intangible 
under 

development* 
 

Total 
Cost  N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 
          
As at 1 Jan. 2023 93,285,756 12,672,000  -  19,020,000 38,224 35,668,979 1,155,000 141,504,095 303,344,054 
Additions - - 58,659,955 - - - -   9,011 58,668,966 
Reclassification   127,234,095 -  14,270,000  (141,504,095) - 

As at 31 Dec. 2023    93,285,756 12,672,000 185,894,050 19,020,000    38,224 49,938,979 1,155,000 9,011 362,013,020 
          
Additions - - - - 500,888 - 9,011 70,457 580,356 
Reclassification - - - - - - (1278) 1278 - 

As at 31 Dec. 2024 93,285,756 12,672,000 185,894,050 19,020,000 539,112 49,938,979 1,162,733 80,746 362,593,376 

          
Accumulated Amortisation         
          
As at 1 Jan. 2023 (31,519,158) (4,534,146) - (19,020,000) (38,224) (14,136,378) (588,127)  -    (69,836,033) 

Amortisation (8,233,482) (1,267,200) (14,188,150)   - 
 

  - 
  

(4,712,126) 
 

(10,628) 
 

- 
  

(28,411,586) 

As at 31 Dec. 2023 (39,752,640) (5,801,346) (14,188,150) (19,020,000) (38,224) (18,848,504) (598,755) - (98,247,619) 
Amortisation (8,233,482) (1,267,200) (16,962,860) - (153,277) (5,740,895) (10,627) - (32,368,341) 

As at 31 Dec. 2024 (47,986,122) (7,068,546) (31,151,010) (19,020,000) (191,501) (24,589,399) (609,382) - (130,615,960) 

          
Carrying amount          
 
As at 31 Dec 2024 

45,299,634 5,603,454 154,743,040 - 347,611 25,349,580 553,351 80,746 
231,977,416 

As at 31 Dec 2023 53,533,116      6,870,654 171,705,900 
 

-   - 
      

31,090,475 556,245   9,011 
     

263,765,401 

 
*The intangible under development relates to VSAT Earth Station Network Frequency License on Ku band for N81 million (2023: N9million) which is not 
ready for use by Airtel as at 31st December 2024.
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19. Right of use assets 
 
The movement on this account during the year for the Company was as follows: 

  
Plant & 

Equipment 
 

Building 
Motor 

Vehicles 
 

Total 
Cost N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 
      
As at 1 Jan. 2023     507,875,807 2,806,876   300,824    510,983,507 
Addition 111,874,482  123,871   -    111,998,353 
Retirement (Note 19.2)    (382,899) -  -        (382,899) 

Balance 31 Dec. 2023 619,367,390 2,930,747   300,824 622,598,961 
     
Additions 2,171,113,469                     -                 -    2,171,113,469 
Retirement (Note 19.2) (308,300)   (308,300) 

Balance 31 Dec. 2024 2,790,172,559 2,930,747 300,824 2,793,404,130 

     

Accumulated Depreciation     
     
As at 1 Jan. 2023  (165,315,421) (1,061,148) (300,824) (166,677,393) 
Depreciation charge (88,999,386)  (202,069)    - (89,201,455) 
Retirement ((Note 19.2)     299,834  -     -        299,834 

Balance 31 Dec. 2023 (254,014,973) (1,263,217) (300,824) (255,579,014) 
     
Depreciation charge (164,618,050) (140,909)              -    (164,758,959) 
Retirement ((Note 19.2) 240,054 - - 240,054 
Reclassification     - (17,478)    17,478    - 

Balance 31 Dec. 2024 (418,392,969) (1,421,604) (283,346) (420,097,919) 

     
Net Book Value     
     
As at 31 Dec 2024 2,371,779,590 1,509,143           17,478    2,373,306,211 

As at 31 Dec 2023 
 

365,352,417 1,667,530  -     367,019,947 

 
The Company leases several assets including buildings, GSM equipment and motor vehicles. The useful 
life is detailed in Note 3.6 of the accounting policies. The Company’s obligations are secured by the 
lessors’ title to the leased assets for such leases. The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is presented in 
Note 31 – Lease liabilities. 

 
19.1 Amount recognised in profit and loss  

    2024  2023  
    N’000  N’000  
    

 
 

 

Depreciation of right of use assets (Note 11 – Other operating expenses) 164,758,959  89,201,455 
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19. Right of use assets (cont’d) 
 
19.2 Retirement of Right of use assets – GSM Equipment 

In 2024, the Company exited some leased sites as per terms of the agreement with the Lessor. The 
carrying amount of the exited sites derecognised is N55.07 million (2023: N83.07 million) 
 

19.3 Sale and lease back transactions 
As at 31 December 2024, included in the right of use assets – GSM equipment is the carrying value of 
assets held under a sale and lease back transaction of N1,251.02 billion (2023: N25.25 billion) and 
deferred gain on sale of towers of N3.3 billion (2023: N9.82 billion). The deferred gain is a deduction 
from the fair value of the leased back asset on initial recognition which is being amortised over the 
leased term.  
 

20. Other financial assets  
                   

     2024  2023 
     N’000  N’000 

        
Non- Current      219,646  15,224,053 
Current      168,064  28,441,727 

     387,710  43,665,780 

        
Security deposit     1,876  1,876 
Staff car loan     385,834  424,434 
Cross Currency Swap Deposit (20.1)     -  43,239,470 

     387,710  43,665,780 

 
Security deposit represents amount held by a vendor as deposit for use of its facility. This is recoverable 
in cash after the termination of the contract. Also, included is an amount paid under protest for legal 
cases. 
 
The staff car loans are given by the Company as upfront payment under a scheme to support car 
acquisition for qualifying staff. The loan attracts no interest and the initial transaction price has been re-
measured in line with IFRS 9 at amortised cost. The tenors of the loans range from 24 months to 48 
months based on the underlying agreement. IFRS 9 requires that loans and receivables should be 
measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR). The loans given by the Company to 
the employees are measured using the Effective Interest Rate method under IFRS. The net resulting 
difference from the re-measurement at effective interest rate and the nominal rate of the loan has been 
recognised as finance income and costs (Note 12(b)) and deferred for amortisation over the life of the 
loans. 
 

20.1 Cross Currency Swap Deposit  
This relates to deposit for forward contracts held with banks categorised into: Current (maturity less 
than one year) and Non-Current (maturity above a year). 
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21. Inventories 

     2024  2023  
    N’000  N’000 

        
SIM Cards     6,518,832  1,887,782 
Accessories & Devices     8,012,234  4,881,805 

     14,531,066  6,769,587 

 
Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value.  
 
* During the year, N1,488.78 million was recognised as write-off and provision/reversal for inventories carried at 
net realisable value (2023: N72.94 million). This is recognised as part of other operating expenses in Note 11. 
 
Inventory Movement reported in statement of cash flows 

    2024 2023 
Inventory Provision Reconciliation    N’000  N’000 
Opening Stock Provision    (551,560)  (892,668) 
Movement    (378,640)     341,108 

Closing Stock Provision 
  

 
 

(930,200)  (551,560) 

 
Inventory Reconciliation 

  
    

Opening Balance (Gross)    7,321,147  3,242,560 
Addition    17,755,339  7,914,911 
Sales    (8,505,077)  (3,422,279) 
Write-Off    (1,110,143)  (414,045) 

    15,461,266  7,321,147 
Less: Stock Provision    (930,200)  (551,560) 

Net Closing Balance                                                                                          
  

 
 

14,531,066  6,769,587 

             
22. Trade and other receivables 

     2024  2023 
     N’000  N’000 
Interconnect                                           23,350,619  27,685,023 
Subscribers     10,402,596   4,931,889  
Dealers      20,250,407  18,242,076 
Leased line     2,325,350  851,108 
Roaming     1,966,853  1,589,061 
Bank USSD     887,979   2,839,032  

     59,183,804  56,138,189 
Due from related companies     62,267,947  25,779,882 

Trade receivables     121,451,751  81,918,071 

Allowance for impairment of receivables (Note 22(b))     
 

  (14,932,176)  
 

(11,586,180) 

Net trade receivables     106,519,575  70,331,891 
        

Other receivables        
Due from related companies     372,929  12,518,829 
Other receivables     615,003  581,546 
Less: Allowance for other receivables (Note 22(d))   (211,744)  (167,795) 

     107,295,763  83,264,471 
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22. Trade and other receivables (cont’d) 
        

 Other receivables 
     2024  2023 
     N’000  N’000 
Staff Advance & Others     220,270  216,261 
Interest Receivables     394,733     365,285 

     
 

615,003  581,546 

 
Trade receivables, consisting of interconnect, roaming, leased lines and subscribers are non-interest 
bearing and are generally on 30 days’ term. For terms and conditions relating to related party payables, 
refer to Note 35. 
 
The Company applies the simplified approach which uses a provision matrix to measure the expected 
credit loss (ECL) of trade receivables. Based on the industry practices and the business environment in 
which the entity operates, management considers that the trade receivables are credit impaired if the 
payments are more than 90 days past due except for interconnect of 270 days past due. There has been 
no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the current reporting 
period in assessing the loss allowance for the amounts due from customers.  
 
 Trade receivables (days past due) 

  0-90 days 91-180 days 181-270 days >270 days  
Expected credit loss rate      
Interconnect 0% 0% 0% 100%  

Bank USSD 0% 100% 100% 100%  

Non Interconnect 0% 100% 100% 100%  

Other Receivables 0% 100% 100% 100%  

       
  0-90 days 91-180 days 181-270 days >270 days Total 
                   N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 
At December 2024      
Interconnect  14,069,124   2,465,052   643,992   6,172,451  23,350,619 

Bank USSD  -  10,791   1,651  875,537 887,979 

Non Interconnect 27,073,460 4,115,438 278,347 3,477,961 34,945,206 

   
41,142,584 

  

6,591,281 
  

923,990 
  

10,525,949 
 

59,183,804 

Expected Credit Loss 
 

- 4,126,229 279,998 10,525,949 14,932,176 

 
 
 
  



Airtel Networks Limited 
Annual Report and Financial Statements  

For the year ended 31 December 2024 

66 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
22.  Trade and other receivables (cont’d) 
 

  0-90 days 91-180 days 181-270 days >270 days Total 
 
At December 2023 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 
Interconnect 9,648,401 12,334,856 428,735 5,273,031 27,685,023 
Bank USSD 31,840 839 11,143 2,795,210 2,839,032 
Non Interconnect 22,108,177 418,583 608,735 2,478,639 25,614,134 

  31,788,418 12,754,278 1,048,613 10,546,880 56,138,189 

Expected Credit Loss - 419,422 619,878 10,546,880 11,586,180 

 
  0-90 days 91-180 days 181-270 days >270 days Total 
  N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 
At December 2024      
Other receivable  

403,259 48,542 86,231 76,971 
 

615,003 

Expected Credit Loss  
 

(48,542) 
 

(86,231) 
 

(76,971) 
 

(211,744) 

       
  0-90 days 91-180 days 181-270 days >270 days Total 
 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 
At December 2023      
Other receivable 413,751 48,847 85,484 33,464 581,546 

Expected Credit Loss  (48,847) (85,484) (33,464) (167,795) 

 
The Company writes off a trade receivable to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery 
e.g. when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could 
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amount due. The Company however continues to engage in 
enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. There was no write off of trade receivables 
for the year 2024 (2023: Nil). 
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22.  Trade and other receivables (cont’d) 
 
(a) Statement of the interconnect receivables and payables for the year: 

 

 2024  2023 
 N’000  N’000 

Receivables    
Balance as at 1 January 27,685,023   7,737,199  
Revenue for the year (Note 6) 212,734,498  163,454,936 
Impairment during the year 4,457,902  3,613,388 
Balance as at 31 December (Note 22) (23,350,619)  (27,685,023) 

Payment received in the year 221,526,804  147,120,500 

 
Payables    
Balance as at 1 January 609,789   947,075  
Cost for the year (Note 7) 159,801,183  133,813,555 
Balance as at 31 December (Note 33) (2,324,981)  (609,789)  

Payment made in the year 158,085,991  134,150,841 

Net receipt for the year 63,440,813  12,969,659 

 
(b) Allowance for impairment of trade receivables  
        Movement in allowance for impairment of trade receivables is as follows: 
 

     2024  2023 

     N’000  N’000 
        

Individually impaired      14,932,176  11,586,180 

 

     N’000  N’000 
Balance as at 1 January     11,586,180     9,462,343 
Net Addition during the year     1,799,040  1,033,825 
Exchange differences    1,546,956  1,090,012 

Balance as at 31 December     
 

14,932,176  11,586,180 

 
 
  



Airtel Networks Limited 
Annual Report and Financial Statements  

For the year ended 31 December 2024 

68 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
 
22. Trade and other receivables (cont’d) 
 
(c) Due from related companies 

     2024  2023 

     N’000  N’000 
Airtel Tchad S.A.     984,783  600,505 
Airtel Congo S.A.     1,119,686  681,661 
Airtel Congo (RDC) S.A.     2,998,745  959,752 
Airtel Gabon S.A.     403,540  220,217 
Airtel Kenya Networks Limited     410,225  253,411 
Airtel Madagascar S.A.     16,357  10,576 
Airtel Malawi Plc     97,549  59,463 
Celtel Niger S.A.     14,774,676  8,186,647 
Airtel Tanzania Networks Limited     130,506  81,162 
Airtel Uganda Limited     76,867  45,885 
Airtel Networks Zambia Plc     431,567  266,267 
Airtel Seychelles Mobile Limited     94,574  57,980 
Airtel Rwanda Networks Limited     272,422  202,575 
Airtel Mobile Commerce Nigeria B.V     29,091  12,606 
Smartcash Payment Service Bank Limited     9,685,407  12,572,884 
Airtel Africa Plc     5,004,400  2,680,767 
Airtel Africa services (UK) LTD (AASUKL)     1,973,983  1,029,476 
Bharti Airtel International (Netherlands) Kenya Branch     408,488  251,687 
Bharti Airtel (France) SAS     21,970  13,537 
Bharti Airtel (UK) Limited     22,758,786  9,657,776 
Bharti Airtel Limited     713,934  371,671 
Bharti Hexacom Limited      622  6 
Bharti International (Singapore) Pte. Limited     190,165  82,166 
Jersey Airtel Limited     19  34 
Airtel Africa Foundation     42,511  - 
Bharti Airtel Lanka (Pvt.) Ltd     3   

     
 

62,640,876  38,298,711 

 
For terms and conditions relating to related party transactions, refer to Note 35. 
 
At December 2024 0-90 days 91-180 days 181-270 days >270 days Total 
 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 

Due from related companies 1,157,960 9,665,509 1,720,289 50,097,118 62,640,876 

 
At December 2023 0-90 days 91-180 days 181-270 days >270 days Total 
 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 

Due from related companies 9,442,549 1,389,835 6,755,994 20,710,333 38,298,711 

 

     2024  2023 
Due from related company     N’000  N’000 
Trade receivables     62,267,947  25,779,882 
Other receivables     372,929  12,518,829 

Balance as at 31 December     62,640,876  38,298,711 
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22. Trade and other receivables (cont’d) 
 
(d) Allowance for impairment of other receivables  

        Movement in allowance for impairment of other receivables is as follows: 

     2024  2023 

     N’000  N’000 
        

Individually impaired      211,744  167,795 

 
Balance as at 1 January     167,795     138,867    
Movement during the year    (35,720)  28,928 
Exchange difference    79,669  - 

Balance as at 31 December 
    

 
211,744  167,795 

 
(e) Impairment of financial assets 

      2024  2023 
      N’000  N’000 

 Allowance of trade receivables (Note 22b)  1,799,040  1,033,825 
 (Reversal)/Allowance of other receivables (Note 22d)  (35,720)  28,928 
 Impairment for cash and cash equivalent (Note- 25)*  74,270  - 
 Reclass for cash and cash equivalent  -  (51,099) 

      
 

1,837,590  1,011,654 

 
Impairment reported in statement of profit and loss is the net impairment movement for financial 
assets. Trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalent movement in the statement of cash 
flows is reported net of impairment. 
 
*Impairment represents irrecoverable cash and cash equivalents held in a distressed financial 
institution. 
 

(f)       Trade and other receivables movement reported in statement of cash flows 
     2024  2023  

    N’000  N’000 
Opening Balance     83,264,472  42,001,055 
Movement During the year     27,421,235  43,416,183 
Impairment on trade and other receivables  (3,389,944)  (2,152,766) 

Closing Balance 
     

107,295,763  83,264,472 
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23. Other assets 

     2024  2023  
    N’000  N’000 

Non-current     35,690,630   17,597,243 
Current     53,881,834   23,029,553 

   
 

 
 

89,572,464  40,626,796 

        
Prepaid expenses (Note 23(a))     5,282,061   4,953,036 
Prepaid site lease/rent (Note 23(b))     8,651,659    3,578,924  
Customer acquisition cost (Note 23(c))     35,571,313  22,437,567 
HBB Acquisition Cost (Note 23(d))     22,828,364  6,950,812 
Advance payment to suppliers/regulators (Note 23(e))   17,239,067     2,706,457       

     
          

89,572,464             40,626,796 

 
(a) Prepaid expenses include prepaid annual maintenance charges, prepaid insurance and advance 

office rent. 
 

(b) Prepaid site lease represents prepaid amount to vendors from contracts mainly pertaining to lease 
arrangements for telecommunication infrastructure.  
 

(c) Customer acquisition cost – This relates to balance of verification / know your customer (KYC) and 
other SIM related costs incurred in acquiring new customers amortized over the average life cycle 
of the customer within the network. 
 

(d) HBB acquisition cost – This relates to direct HBB cost on acquisition of new HBB customers 
amortized over the average life cycle of the customer 
 

(e) Advance payments are made to strategic vendors for normal business operations and are backed up 
by Advance Payment Guarantee from the Vendors bankers and advance payment for statutory 
liabilities. 

 
24. Income tax recoverable 

     2024  2023  
    N’000  N’000 

Unutilised WHT credit notes 
    

 
1,488,136  

 
1,689,547 

 
 This represents unutilised withholding tax credit notes received from Federal Inland Revenue service 
(FIRS). 
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24.1   Movement in income tax recoverable 
     2024  2023  

    N’000  N’000 
Balance as at 1 January      1,689,547  1,677,711 
Additions during the year     1,005,518  1,440,542 
Utilized during the year (Note 15c)     (1,206,929)  (1,428,706) 

Un-utilized WHT credit notes 
    

 
1,488,136  

  
1,689,547 

 
25. Cash and Bank Balances 

     2024  2023 
     N’000  N’000 

Cash in hand     53,550   6,320  
Wallet Balances     158,470   6,030  
Bank balances     22,203,968  17,658,869 
Restricted Cash (Note 25.1)     39,678  56,888 
Allowance for Bank Balance                                                         (74,270)  - 

Cash and bank balance 
    

 
22,381,396  17,728,107 

 
          For the purpose of statement of Cash flow, cash and cash Equivalent are as follows: 
 

     2024  2023 
     N’000  N’000 

Cash and bank balance     22,381,396  17,728,107 
Bank Overdraft (Note 28 (c))                               (203,981,313)  (88,816,547) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
    

 
(181,599,917)  (71,088,440) 

 
25.1 Restricted cash  

This represents cash set aside as per court order of N39.68 million (2023: N39.68 million) and advance 
deposit with bank for foreign exchange is nil (2023: N17.21 million) is therefore not available for use by 
the Company. 
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26. Share capital and Share premium 
 
26.1 Share capital 

 2024  2023  
N’000  N’000 

Authorised:     
13,500,000,000 ordinary shares of N1 each 13,500,000  13,500,000 

    
Issued, called up and fully paid:     
13,286,998,758 ordinary shares of N1 each 13,286,999  13,286,999 
Less: Shares bought back 1,092,497  1,092,497 

Total Share Capital 
 

12,194,502  12,194,502 

 
The remaining 213,001,242 shares are rights issue shares which were not taken up during the first right 
issue done in the early days of the company and were not re-distributed since then. Management will 
seek necessary approvals to deal with the shares as appropriate before the end of the year 2025. 

  
26.2 Share premium 

 2024  2023  
N’000  N’000 

    
As at 31 December 67,235,360  67,235,360 

 
26.3 Treasury Shares (Share Buy-Back) 

In 2021 the shareholders passed a resolution pursuant to the provisions of the Companies and Allied 
Matters Act 2020 to effect a buy-back of not more than cumulative 10% of the fully paid ordinary shares 
of the company from all existing shareholders on a proportionate basis at the price of N55.81 per share, 
this Share Buy-back process was concluded in December 2021 when the Board approved the share 
transfers from participating shareholders. A total of 1,092,497,868 unit of shares were bought back 
representing 8.22% of the issued shares. The sum of N60.97 billion was paid to the shareholders and 
transaction cost involved in the buyback is N6.58 billion.  
 
According to CAMA 2020, a company shall not hold more than 15% of the nominal value of the issued 
share capital of any class of its shares as treasury shares and where a company buys more than 15% of 
the issued share capital of any class of its shares as treasury shares, the company shall, before the end of 
12 months beginning with the date on which the contravention occurs, reissue or cancel the shares. 
However, in the case of the share bought back by the company in 2021, it has not exceeded the 15% 
threshold. Hence, the condition for reissuance or cancellation is not mandatory. The Company will decide 
either to re-issue or cancel the share buy-back as it deems fits in the future. 
 

 2024  2023  
N’000  N’000 

    
As at 31 December (67,553,510)  (67,553,510) 
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27. Retained earnings 

     2024  2023  
    N’000  N’000 

As at 1 January     (89,320,276)  163,971,459 
Loss for the year     (322,166,263)  (253,291,735) 

As at 31  December       
 

(411,486,539)  
 

(89,320,276) 
 

27.1 Dividend – During the year 2024 no dividend was declared by the Board of Directors (2023: Nil). 
 

28 Interest bearing loans and borrowings 
     2024  2023 
               N’000  N’000 
Non-current        
Term loans and borrowings (Note 28 (a))                                    342,971,183  235,297,555 
Shareholder loan  (Note 28 (b))                                                       34,444,962  19,072,455 

     
 

377,416,145  
 

254,370,010 

Current        
Term loans and borrowings (Note 28 (a))                                   126,022,258  4,351,480 
Bank Overdraft (Note 28 (c))                                   203,981,313  88,816,547 
Trade Import facilities – confirmed letters of credit (Note 28 (d)) -  1,189,961 

     330,003,571  
 

94,357,988 
 

(a) Term loans and borrowings 

     2024  2023 

     N’000  N’000 
        

Balance at 1 January     239,649,035  123,243,310 
Additions in the year     480,191,189  82,429,484   

     719,840,224  205,672,794   
Repayment     (367,208,315)  (86,674,950) 
Exchange difference     116,361,532      120,651,191  

Balance at 31 December     468,993,441  239,649,035 

 
Current       126,022,258  4,351,480 
Non-current     342,971,183  235,297,555 

     468,993,441  239,649,035 

 
Interest Movement on term loans and borrowings 

  2024  2023 
  N’000  N’000 

             Opening balance  9,400,314  975,935 
             Accrued Interest for the year (Note 13)  112,050,308  28,809,216 

  121,450,622  29,785,151 
             Interest paid in the year (Note 13(a))  (110,613,351)  (22,638,950) 
             Exchange Difference  3,044,521  2,254,113 

     13,881,792  9,400,314 
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28 Interest bearing loans and borrowings (cont’d) 

 
Stanbic IBTC Bank (Stanbic) – This is local currency facility of ₦15Billion from Stanbic IBTC Bank granted in 
2024 It has a fixed interest rate which is reset intermittently to reflect the prevailing market conditions. 
The facility is short-term unsecured loan, with a tenor of 1 year and a cleanup cycle of 180days. 

 
The balance of the loan as at December 2024 is ₦15 Billion  (2023: Nil) with a final maturity date in June 
2025 Although the Bank has an option to extend the tenor or re- disburse the facility following the final 
maturity date .. 

 
Greenwich Merchant Bank (GMB) – This is an unsecured local currency loan of ₦4.5Billion from Greenwich 
Merchant Bank in 2024. It has a fixed interest rate which is reset intermittently to reflect the prevailing 
market conditions. This is a short-term facility with a tenor of 1 year from drawdown date, with a 90day 
cleanup cycle. 

 
The balance of the loan as at December 2024 is ₦4.5 Billion  (2023: Nil) with a final maturity date in August 
2025. 

 
Ecobank Bank Limited (Ecobank) – This is revolving local currency long term loan of ₦25Billion from 
Ecobank Bank with a maximum tenor of three years. It has a fixed interest rate which is reset intermittently 
to reflect the prevailing market conditions.  A bridge Loan of ₦2.5Billion from the total facility limit was 
drawn in March 2024 for a tenor of 1 year. The facility is secured by All-assets Debenture. 

 
The balance of the loan as at December 2024 is ₦2.5 Billion (2023: Nil). 

 
Standard Chartered Bank (SCB) – This is a foreign currency revolving loan facility of $50 million from 
Standard Chartered Bank Dubai in 2020, the facility amount was enhanced to $75mn in 2022 and 
subsequently to $125mn in 2023. it is a variable interest loan, linked to average 3-month SOFR plus margin 
of 2.75% repayable monthly. A total drawdown of $87.5 million has been made on the loan and has been 
fully repaid in October 2023. The facility is secured by Corporate Guarantee given by BAIN B.V. 
 
The balance of the loan as at December 2024 is Nil (2023: Nil) with a final maturity date in October 2025. 

 

CITI Bank Dubai - This is a foreign currency revolving cumulative loan facility of $16.5 million from CITI Bank 
Abu Dhabi in 2020 repayable quarterly, it is a variable interest loan, linked to average 3-month SOFR plus 
margin of 2.6%. The facility was refinanced and enhanced in 2022 to $55 million with committed portion 
of $30mn and $25mn uncommitted portion. A total drawdown of $185.7 million has been made on the 
loan and repayment as at December 2024 was $185.7m. The facility is secured by Corporate Guarantee 
given by BAIN B.V. 

 
The balance of the loan as at December 2024 is Nil (2023: $4.5 million) with a final maturity date in 
September 2026. 

       

Bank of America Hong Kong - This is a foreign currency loan of $100 million from Bank of America in 2022.It 
has a variable interest rate linked to 3- month SOFR plus a margin of 2.5% per annum The facility has a 
tenor of 4 years and is secured by Corporate Guarantee given by BAIN B.V. 
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28 Interest bearing loans and borrowings (cont’d) 
 

The balance of the advance as at December 2024 is $30 million (2023: $95 million) with a final maturity 
date of June 2026. 
 

Deutsche Bank Singapore - This is a foreign currency loan of $100 million from Deutsche Bank in 2022. It 
has a variable interest rate linked to 3- month SOFR plus a margin of 2.8% per annum The facility has a 
tenor of 4 years and is secured by Corporate Guarantee given by BAIN B.V. 
               
The balance of the advance as at December 2024 is $53.5million (2023: $100 million) with a final maturity 
date of August 2026. 
 

Zenith Bank Plc-  This is local currency loan of N50Bn from Zenith Bank in 2019. It has a fixed interest rate 
which is reset intermittently to reflect the prevailing market conditions. The facility has a tenor of 5 years 
from drawdown date including a moratorium of 2 years. During the year, the facility was enhanced to 
N100Bn, and the bank granted another tranche of N100Bn facility . A total of N150Bn has been drawn from 
the total limit of N200Bn 
 
The balance of the loan as at December 2024 is N150Bn (2023: N40Bn) with a  maturity dates ranging from 
April 2028 to May 2029. 
                 
 First  Bank Plc-  This is local currency loan of N36Bn from First  Bank in 2021. It has a fixed interest rate 
which is reset intermittently to reflect the prevailing market conditions. The facility has a tenor of 5 years 
from drawdown date including a moratorium of 2 years. The bank granted a second tranche of N44Bn in 
May 2024. Both tranches totaling  N80Bn has been fully drawn 
  

The balance of the loan as at December 2024 is N80Bn (2023: N10Bn) with a final maturity dates in April  
2028 for Tranche 1 and September-29 for Tranche 2 respectively. 
 

UBA-  This is local currency loan of N28Bn from UBA in 2023. It has a fixed interest rate which is reset 
intermittently to reflect the prevailing market conditions. The facility has a tenor of 3 years from drawdown 
date including a moratorium of 6 months. The bank granted a second tranche of N100Bn in September 
2024. A total of N48Bn has been drawn from the total limit of N128Bn. 
 

The balance of the loan as at December 2024 is N45.2Bn (2023: Nil) with a final maturity date in December 
2027 with almost  half of the repayment due  in February 2027 . 
 

GTB -  This is local currency loan of N50Bn from GTB in August 2024 and has been fully drawn. It has a fixed 
interest rate which is reset intermittently to reflect the prevailing market conditions. The facility has a tenor 
of 13 months from drawdown date. 
 

The balance of the loan as at December 2024 is N34.6Bn (2023: Nil) with a final maturity date in September 
2025. 
 
Fidelity - This is local currency loan of N10Bn from Fidelity and has been fully drawn in May 2024. It has a 
fixed interest rate which is reset intermittently to reflect the prevailing market conditions. The facility has 
a tenor of 3 years from drawdown date and 1 year moratorium. 
 
The balance of the loan as at December 2024 is N10Bnn (2023: Nil) with a final maturity date in May 2027. 
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28 Interest bearing loans and borrowings (cont’d) 
 

(b) Shareholder loan 

 
Interest and charged cost outstanding to shareholders were capitalized as per agreement with the 
shareholders. The shareholder loan is non-current which has a maturity date of December 31, 2026. 

 
(c) Bank overdraft 

 Commitment  
Drawn-
down  Available  Outstanding 

 N’000  N’000  N’000  N’000 

        
2024 277,500,000  203,981,313  73,518,687  203,981,313 

        
2023 141,500,000  88,816,547  52,683,453  88,816,547 

 
The Company’s overdraft facilities are revolving having a structure of 12 months’ term with a rate of 
interest ranging between 26% and 35% (2023: 26.25% and 30%) per annum. These facilities are 
unsecured. 

 
(d) Letter of Credit (LC’s) – Trade Import Facilities 

The Company has a trade import facilities arrangement with banks in the form of confirmed letter of 
credit. Under this arrangement the bank guarantees and pay the Company foreign vendors pending 
when foreign exchange (FX) is available / sourced from Central bank due to the shortage of FX in the 
country. All LCs have been cleared for the year (2023: N1.19 billion). 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

      2024  2023 
      N’000  N’000 
          
Balance at 1 January      19,072,455  - 

Addition 
     

 -  
  

 14,165,318   

Exchange difference      15,372,507     4,907,137 

 
Balance at 31 December      34,444,962  19,072,455 



Airtel Networks Limited 
Annual Report and Financial Statements  

For the year ended 31 December 2024 

77 
 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
 

28 Interest bearing loans and borrowings (cont’d) 
 
 

 
29        Provisions 

     2024  2023 
     N’000  N’000 
Non-current        
Asset retirement obligation (Note 29.1)     121,781  43,719 

Current        
Provision for Tax cases (Note 29.2)     241,770  241,770 

Provision for litigations (Note 29.3)     507,424  426,541 
     749,194  668,311 

 
29.1 Asset Retirement obligation 

     2024  2023 
     N’000  N’000 
Balance at 1 January:        
ARO liability      8,152    8,152  
Finance cost     35,567   33,329  

     43,719  41,481 
Additions during the year:        
ARO liability     20,217  - 
Finance cost     57,845  2,238 

     78,062  2,238 
Balance at 31 December:        
ARO liability     28,369  8,152 
Finance cost     93,412  35,567 

     
 

121,781  
 

43,719 

 
The Asset retirement obligation is recognised for Base Transceiver Stations (BTS) constructed by the 
Company which will be decommissioned when the leased site becomes un-renewable.   

      2024  2023 
      N’000  N’000 
         
Balance at 1 January      1,189,961  11,033,254 
Additions in the year      2,260,919  35,665,559   
Exchange difference      (763,656)  11,650,012 

      2,687,224  58,348,825 
Repayment in the year      (2,687,224)  (57,158,864) 

 
Balance as at 31 December      -  1,189,961 
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29.1 Asset Retirement obligation (cont’d) 

 
Provision during the period for asset retirement obligation is after considering the impact of unwinding 
of the discount over time. The discount rate used to calculate the obligation at the end of 2024 was 
13.82% (2023: 13.82%). The discount rate represents the real rate determined using a pre-tax discount 
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and those risks specific to the 
liability. Finance cost portion of the asset retirement obligation is shown in Note 13. 

 
29.2 Provision for Tax Cases 

     2024  2023 
     N’000  N’000 
        
Balance at 1 January     241,770  241,770 
Addition during the year     -  - 
Utilisation during the year     -  - 

Balance at 31 December     
  

241,770       
  

241,770      

  
These provisions relate to tax audit liabilities received from State Internal Revenue Service (IRS) and 
Federal Inland Revenue Service (FIRS) in respect of tax administration under their respective jurisdiction. 
The claims are subject to providing relevant documents and explanations in line with relevant tax laws 
and guidelines as at the period of tax subject. The amount is regarded as current because it could 
crystallize upon judgement 

 
29.3 Provision for litigations 

     2024  2023 
     N’000  N’000 
        
Balance at 1 January     426,541   426,541 
Addition during the year           93,145      - 
Utilisation during the year     (12,262)  - 

Balance at 31 December     
 

507,424  
  

426,541     

  
These provisions relate to claims in respect of court cases for which there is probable likelihood of the 
claims crystallising based on the available evidence. The claims are subject to legal arbitration and as at 
the reporting date, the provisions were reassessed and the impact reflected accordingly. These claims 
by nature relate to disputes over tower/mast installations and general litigations. Movement in the year 
is included in legal expenses. 
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30 Deferred revenue 
     2024  2023  

    N’000  N’000 
        
Customer advances     75,950,349  52,939,909 
Grants (Note 30(a))     268,183  211,779 
Customer loyalty claims (Note 30(b))     361,655  258,075  

    
 

76,580,187  
 

53,409,763  
       

Non-current     230,652  647,617 
Current     76,349,535  52,762,146  

    76,580,187  
 

53,409,763 

 
(a) Grants 

Balance at 1 January     211,779  160,754 
Addition during the year     89,361  76,648    
Amortised for the year (Note 8)     (32,957)  (25,623) 

Balance at 31 December     
 

268,183        211,779 

        
Non-current     230,652  186,156 
Current     37,531  25,623  

    
 

268,183        211,779 
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30 Deferred revenue (cont’d) 

 
Grants was received for the construction of Base Transceiver Stations in remote regions. There are no 
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies in relation to these grants. This grant is amortised on a straight 
line basis over the useful life of the related asset. The amortised portion of the deferred grant has been 
included in other income as stated in Note 8. 

 
(b) Customer loyalty  

The Company operates a customer loyalty programme, which allows customers to accumulate points 
when they recharge airtime. The points can be redeemed for free airtime, subject to a minimum number 
of points being obtained. Consideration received is allocated between the airtime revenue and the points 
issued, with the consideration allocated to the points equal to their fair value. Fair value of the points is 
determined by applying a statistical analysis. The fair value of the points issued is deferred and recognised 
as revenue when the points are redeemed. As at 31 December 2024, the estimated liability for 
unredeemed points was approximately N361.66 million (2023: N258.07 million) disclosed as part of 
deferred revenue liability. 
 
     2024  2023 

     N’000  N’000 
        

Balance as at 1 January     258,075  743,234 
Accrued      421,990  995,322 
Utilization     (318,410)  (1,480,481) 

Balance as at 31 December 
  

 
 

 
361,655  258,075 

         
31 Lease liabilities 

     2024  2023 

     N’000  N’000 
        

Non-current     2,863,587,926  534,975,616 
Current     65,032,756  164,648,843 

 
     

 
2,928,620,682     699,624,459 

 
The Company has lease contracts for network passive infrastructure and technical capacities of the 
dedicated part of the towers on which the Company’s equipment is located. These leases have terms of 
renewal but no purchase options and have escalation clauses. Renewals are at the option of the 
Company. Refer to Note 19 for the leased assets included in the right of use. 
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31 Lease liabilities (cont’d) 

 
a. Movement in lease liabilities 

 
Included in the addition during the year is N8,726million (2023: N274million) representing lease liability 
adjustment for loading. 
 

b. Maturity analysis: Undiscounted lease liabilities 

 
c.  Amount recognised in statement of profit or loss 

     2024  2023 

     N’000  N’000 
 
Interest on Lease Liability   

 
 228,854,456  65,830,393 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

     2024  2023 

     N’000  N’000 
        

As at 1 January      699,624,459   467,779,849  
Additions during the year     2,179,839,505  112,148,457 
Lease -Exited Sites     (498,595)  - 
Interest accrued     228,854,456  65,830,393 
Interest repayment     (229,992,622)  (65,980,498) 
Principal repayment      (110,440,257)  (105,910,998) 
Exchange difference     161,233,736  225,757,256 

Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position 
 

2,928,620,682  699,624,459 

     2024  2023 

     N’000  N’000 
        

Less than one year     462,519,497   234,264,697  
Later than one year but not later than two years     463,342,640   197,655,306  
Later than two years but not later than five years     1,594,681,688   276,505,687  
Later than five years but not later than nine years     2,030,233,864   159,344,775  
Later than nine years     1,432,143,359   8,532,745  

 
Total undiscounted lease liabilities     

 
5,982,921,048  876,303,210 

Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position 
 

2,928,620,682  699,624,459 
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32 Employee benefit liability 

      2024  2023  
     N’000  N’000 

         
Leave encashment (Note 32.1)      75,540  46,522 
Staff bonus      2,261,002  1,686,877 
Other employee benefit      16,717  34,461 
Long service award (Note 32.2)      17,401  19,497     

 

 
    

 
2,370,660    1,787,357   

         
Non-current      10,800  14,177 
Current      2,359,860  1,773,180 

       
  2,370,660    1,787,357 

 
Staff bonus represents the accrued bonus for the employee based on performance as at 31 December 
2024 and 2023 respectively. 
 
The leave encashment (compensated leave absences) and long service award for the Company are 
presented based on the actuarial valuation carried out by Mercer Consulting (India) Private Limited for 
the year ended 31 December 2024. The partner in charge of the actuarial valuation is Hemanshu Jain 
with Financial Intermediaries Association of India membership number 18301. There are no plan assets 
as this is an unfunded scheme. 
 
Other employee benefits includes deposits made by Staff for car and loan deductions. 
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32 Employee benefit liability (cont’d) 

 
The assumptions as at the reporting date are used to determine the present value of the long service 
award and leave encashment at that date and the defined benefit cost for the following year. 

 
32.1 Leave encashment 
 

Key assumptions: 31 December 2024 31 December 2023 
Discount rate* 20.25% p.a 16.50% p.a 
Salary increase rate 19.0% p.a 15.0% p.a 
Rate of return on plan assets Not applicable Not applicable 
Mortality Table Assumed to be implicit in withdrawal rate assumption 
Withdrawal (rate of employee turnover) 17% p.a 14% p.a 
Retirement Age 60 years 60 years 

Leave encashment rate 
15% (2023: 12.5%) p.a from available accrued leave balance 
of employee 

Weighted average duration 1 year 1 year 
   

*Discount rate for evaluation has been selected on yield of latest issue of bonds of local government. 
 

Amount shown in statement of financial position 
 

      2024  2023 
      N’000  N’000 
Opening obligation      46,522  29,137 
Current service cost      83,189  98,708 
Interest expense      4,069   2,667  
Benefits paid      (58,240)  (83,990) 

Total leave encashment 
   

 
  

75,540  46,522 

         
Current liability      75,540  46,522 
Non-current liability      -  - 

 
   

 
  

75,540  46,522 
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32.1 Leave encashment (cont’d) 
 

Sensitivity Analysis 
The sensitivity analysis of significant assumptions as of reporting period December 31, 2024 is shown 
below: 

                                                                         N 

            Discount Rate - 50 basis point 75,697,131 
            Discount Rate + 50 basis point 75,383,183 
  
            Salary Rate - 50 basis point 75,539,867 
            Salary Rate + 50 basis point 75,539,867 

  
            Withdrawal Rate - 50 basis point 74,600,285 
            Withdrawal Rate + 50 basis point 76,479,450 

  
            Discount Rate - 100 basis point 75,856,176 
            Discount Rate + 100 basis point 75,227,451 
   
            Salary Rate - 100 basis point 75,539,867 
            Salary Rate + 100 basis point 75,539,867 

  
            Withdrawal Rate - 100 basis point 73,660,702 
            Withdrawal Rate + 100 basis point 77,419,033 

 
32.2 Long service award 

Key assumptions: 31 December 2024 31 December 2023 
Discount rate* 20.25% p.a 16.50% p.a 
Salary increase rate Not applicable Not applicable 
Rate of return on plan assets Not applicable Not applicable 
Mortality Table Assumed to be implicit in withdrawal rate assumption 
Withdrawal (rate of employee turnover) 17% p.a 14% p.a 
Retirement Age 60 years 60 years 
Weighted average duration 1 year 1 year 
   

*Discount rate for evaluation has been selected on yield of latest issue of bonds of local government. 
 

Amount shown in statement of financial position 
      2024  2023 
      N’000  N’000 
Opening obligation      19,497   21,084  
Current service cost      (1,953)   (1,058) 
Interest expense      2,849   2,825  
Benefits paid      (2,992)   (3,354) 

Total long service awards 
   

  
 

17,401  19,497 

         
Current liability      6,601  5,320 
Non-current liability      10,800  14,177 

 
   

  
 

17,401  19,497 
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33  Trade and other payables 
     2024  2023  

    N’000  N’000 
Interconnect creditors (Note 22 (a))     2,324,981  609,789 
Roaming creditors     1,716,629  1,429,440 
Trade creditors     218,256,799  156,354,264 
VAT & WHT Payables     22,590,870  11,756,045 
Due to related companies (Note 33 (a))                                                  111,314,543  96,273,686 
Interest accrued     13,881,792  9,400,314 
Accruals       95,023,257  60,529,223 
Dividend payable (Note 33 (b))     716,581  716,581 

 
  

 
 

 
465,825,452  337,069,342 

 
Trade Creditors are non-interest bearing and are normally settled between 30-60 day terms. For terms 
and conditions relating to related party transactions, refer to Note 35. 
 
Accruals relates to amount due to service vendors in respect of various expenditure at year end but yet 
to be invoiced.  
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33.      Trade and other payables (cont'd) 

 

(a)   Due to related companies 
     2024  2023 

     N’000  N’000 
Airtel Tchad S.A.     8,769  8,886 
Airtel Congo S.A.     405,342  250,004 
Airtel Congo (RDC) S.A.     3,024,893  1,585,880 
Airtel Gabon S.A.     936,489  581,683 
Airtel Kenya Networks Limited     1,716,504  2,435,800 
Airtel Madagascar S.A.     62,326  37,250 
Airtel Malawi Plc     89,360  55,538 
Celtel Niger S.A.     5,238,537  3,615,091 
Airtel Tanzania Networks Limited     1,251,635  669,499 
Airtel Uganda Limited     890,001  479,584 
Airtel Networks Zambia Plc     368,828  169,353 
Airtel Seychelles Mobile Limited     450  305 
Airtel Rwanda Networks Limited     255,117  172,544 
Airtel Africa Telesonic Limited - Dubai Branch     955,787  359,636 
Airtel Mobile Commerce Nigeria B.V     13,592,238  11,197,886 
Bharti Airtel International (Netherlands) B.V.     11,212,017  5,655,140 
Bharti Airtel Nigeria B.V.     38,640  2,211,885 
Airtel Africa services (UK) LTD (AASUKL)     67,135,046  60,767,910 
Bharti Airtel International (Netherlands) Kenya Branch     19,676  12,124 
Bharti Airtel (France) SAS     163,189  204,682 
Bharti Airtel (UK) Limited     1,729,132  5,262,143 
Bharti Airtel Limited     1,841,096  433,681 
Airtel Mobile Commerce B.V.     22,072  5,876 
Bharti International (Singapore) Pte. Limited     35,410  9,869 
Network i2i Limited     185,952  36,747 
Nxtra Data Limited     135,369  54,604 
Jersey Airtel Limited     38  1 
Emtel Mauritius     131  85 
Bharti Hexacom Limited      499   -    

     111,314,543  96,273,686 

 
(b)   Dividend payable (net of tax) 

  2024 2023 

                   Gross    Net   Gross    Net  

Opening balance               716,581               137,900,882  

Dividend paid during the year-Cash - - (137,184,301)           (137,184,301) 

Closing balance                  716,581                   716,581  

 
* Trade and other payables movement in statement of cash flows, changes in working capital is reported 
net of dividend paid. Dividend paid is reported as cash flows from financing activities. 
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34 Derivative financial instruments 

     2024  2023  
    N’000  N’000 

        
Derivative financial assets        
Non-Current     -  - 
Current     -  6,333,900 
        
Derivatives that are not designated as hedging instruments 
carried at fair value through profit or loss:    

Foreign currency forward contracts     -  6,333,900 

        
Derivative financial liabilities        
Non-Current     -  61,096,399 
Current     80,648,481  71,869,588 

 
Derivatives that are not designated as hedging instruments 
carried at fair value through profit or loss:  

 

 

 

Cross Currency Swap/Foreign currency 
forward contracts   

 
 80,648,481  

 
132,965,987 

 
The Company has entered into master netting agreements which involves a foreign currency forward 
contract of Naira and Dollars with the Citi Bank London.  

 
     2024  2023  

    N’000  N’000 
        

Derivative financial assets     -  6,333,900 
Derivative financial liabilities     (80,648,481)  (132,965,987) 

Net amount of derivatives liabilities    
 

 
 

(80,648,481)  (126,632,087) 

Cash collateral paid   
 

 
 

-  43,239,470 

Net amount     
 

(80,648,481)  (83,392,617) 

 
The Company did not enter into any other enforceable netting arrangements other than disclosed 
above.
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35 Related Party  
 

The Company entered into the following trade transactions with the below listed related parties during the year: 
 

(a) Related Party Transactions 
 

(i) Purchase/rendering of services 
 

  2024  2023 
Name of Related Party Relationship N'000  N'000 
Bharti Airtel (UK) Limited Fellow Subsidiary 21,844,046  13,020,226 
Airtel Africa Telesonic Limited - Dubai Branch Fellow Subsidiary 1,723,709  359,636 
Smartcash Payment Service Bank Limited Subsidiary 1,498,990  250,378 
Nxtra Data Limited Fellow Subsidiary 918,325  19,976 
Bharti Airtel Limited Intermediate Parent 801,444  288,290 
Airtel Uganda Limited Fellow Subsidiary 641,054  452,677 
Airtel Congo (RDC) S.A. Fellow Subsidiary 464,151  52,350 
Celtel Niger S.A. Fellow Subsidiary 362,226  677,280 
Airtel Networks Zambia Plc Fellow Subsidiary 231,846  121,356 
Network i2i Limited Intermediate Parent 136,136  31,084 
Bharti Airtel (France) SAS Intermediate Parent 109,707  64,631 
Xtelify Limtied Fellow Subsidiary 92,036  - 
Airtel Tchad S.A. Fellow Subsidiary 69,173  38,548 
Airtel Rwanda Limited Fellow Subsidiary 59,465  40,863 
Airtel Tanzania Public Limited Company Fellow Subsidiary 36,145  20,268 
Airtel Madagascar S.A. Fellow Subsidiary 26,594  11,510 
Airtel Networks Kenya Limited Fellow Subsidiary 26,017  25,158 
Airtel Gabon S.A. Fellow Subsidiary 19,036  43,009 
Airtel Malawi PLC Fellow Subsidiary 4,827  2,429 
Airtel Congo S.A. Fellow Subsidiary 1,824  2,378 
Bharti Hexacom Limited Fellow Subsidiary 1,277  792 
Airtel (Seychelles) Limited Fellow Subsidiary 424  598 
Jersey Airtel Limited Other related party 135  1 
Airtel Africa Services (UK) Limited Fellow Subsidiary -  25,376,121 

  

 
29,068,587  40,899,559 
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35 Related Party (cont’d) 
 

(ii) Sales/rendering of services 
 

  2024  2023 
Name of Related Party Relationship N'000  N'000 
Bharti Airtel (UK) Limited Fellow Subsidiary 40,324,962  22,514,182 
Celtel Niger S.A. Fellow Subsidiary 2,270,858  1,213,500 
Airtel Congo (RDC) S.A. Fellow Subsidiary 1,386,778  614,922 
Bharti Airtel Limited Intermediate Parent 128,026  44,869 
Smartcash Payment Service Bank Limited Subsidiary 104,408  - 
Bharti International (Singapore) Pte. Limited Intermediate Parent 70,809  34,496 
Airtel Gabon S.A. Fellow Subsidiary 65,759  9,432 
Airtel Tchad S.A. Fellow Subsidiary 32,139  1,370 
Airtel Uganda Limited Fellow Subsidiary 27,858  16,115 
Airtel Networks Kenya Limited Fellow Subsidiary 22,290  19,216 
Airtel Congo S.A. Fellow Subsidiary 13,556  8,222 
Airtel Networks Zambia Plc Fellow Subsidiary 4,981  4,337 
Airtel Malawi PLC Fellow Subsidiary 4,923  4,384 
Airtel Tanzania Public Limited Company Fellow Subsidiary 2,554  2,915 
Airtel Rwanda Limited Fellow Subsidiary 2,336  2,892 
Bharti Hexacom Limited Fellow Subsidiary 1,125  176 
Airtel (Seychelles) Limited Fellow Subsidiary 503  237 
Airtel Madagascar S.A. Fellow Subsidiary 333  525 
Jersey Airtel Limited Other related party 39  28 
Bharti Airtel Lanka (Pvt.) Ltd Other related party 7  - 

  

 
44,464,244  24,491,818 

 

(iii) Management Fee (Income)/Expense 

Name of Related Party Relationship 
2024 

N'000  

2023 
N'000 

Smartcash Payment Service Bank Limited Subsidiary (9,547)  - 
Airtel Africa Services (UK) Limited Fellow Subsidiary -  25,376,121 

  (9,547)  

           
25,376,121 

 

(iv) Interest Income on Loan 

Name of Related Party Relationship 
2024 

N'000  

2023 
N'000 

Smartcash Payment Service Bank Limited Subsidiary 414,365  391,367 

  

 
414,365  391,367 

 

(v) Rent and Other Charge 

Name of Related Party Relationship 
2024 

N'000  

2023 
N'000 

Smartcash Payment Service Bank Limited Subsidiary 56,843  - 

  56,843  - 
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35.  Related Party (cont’d) 
 

Other non-trade related due to related parties 
 

   2024  2023 

Item Name Relationship N'000  N'000 

Dividend Payable Bharti Airtel Nigeria BV Parent Entity        716,291          716,291  

Loan Payable Bharti Airtel Nigeria BV Parent Entity   34,444,962     19,072,456  

Interest Payable Bharti Airtel Nigeria BV Parent Entity                     -       2,150,614  

   

 
 35,161,253 

 
 21,939,361 

 
(b) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties: 

The sales to and purchases from related parties are made at terms equivalent to those that prevail in 
arm’s length transactions. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free . There 
have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivables or payables except for 
Bharti Airtel International, Netherlands B.V which has guaranteed some of the foreign loan of the 
Company. The receivables and payables due to and from related parties are disclosed in Note 22 and 
Note 33 respectively.  
 

(c) Investment in Subsidiaries 
In the year 2019, Airtel Networks Limited invested in 99.99% of the shares of Airtel Mobile Commerce 
Nigeria Limited, a limited liability company registered under the laws of Nigeria. As at 31 December 2024, 
the company is yet to commence operations. The Company has paid for the acquisition of the licence 
from the Central Bank of Nigeria.  
 
In its commitment to the fulfilment of the financial inclusion agenda of the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) 
and Federal Republic of Nigeria, the Company acquired 99.99% of the shares of SmartCash Payment 
Service Bank in 2022.  
 
During the year, the investment in SmartCash Payment Service Bank was increased from N5billion to 
N17.5billion. Subsequently, 25% of the shares of SmartCash Payment Service bank was sold to Airtel 
Mobile Commerce Nigeria BV at par value. 
 
The IFRS 10 exemption on preparation of a consolidated financial statements have been followed as per 
the Company’ policy in Note 3.4. Both companies are consolidated by Airtel Africa Plc. 
 
The value of the Company’s investment in the subsidiaries is shown below: 

 
Investment in Subsidiary 2024  2023 

 N’000  N’000 
Balance as at January 1 5,050,000  5,050,000 
Addition during the year 12,500,000  - 

 17,550,000  5,050,000 
Disposal during the year (4,375,000)  - 

Balance as at December 31 
 

13,175,000  5,050,000 
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35.      Related party (cont’d) 
 

Subsidiaries 2024  2023 

 N’000  N’000 

Airtel Mobile Commerce Nigeria Limited           50,000          50,000  

Smart Cash Payment Service Bank  13,125,000     5,000,000  

 13,175,000     5,050,000  

 
(d) Key management personnel (Directors) 

Key management personnel are those who have authority and responsibility for planning, directing 
and controlling the activities of Company.  The Company’s key management personnel are the 
members of the Board. 

 
Compensation to Directors 

 
 2024  2023 

Short term compensation N’000  N’000 
Fees 36,939  30,389 
Sitting allowance 4,173  4,046 

 
41,112  34,435 

    
Chairman emoluments (excluding pension contribution) 16,672  16,672 

    
The fees and emoluments of the highest paid Director 16,672  16,672 

 

There are no long-term benefits, post-employment benefits, share based payment and terminal 
benefits given to the Non-Executive Directors members of the board of the Company except for the 
Chief Executive Officer (CEO) who is member of the board and whose benefits are listed below; 

 

 2024  2023 
CEO’s Benefits N’000  N’000 
Long Term Benefits 40,202  40,202 
Terminal Benefits 7,458  7,458 
Share Based Payment -  - 

  
47,660  47,660 

    

 2024  2023 
Directors’ mix Number  Number 
Executive Director 1  1 
Non-executive Directors 4  4 
Independent Directors 3  3 

 8  8 

 
The Non-Executive Directors that received compensation as at 31 December 2024 were three (3) 
(2023: 3) in numbers. The other Non-Executive Directors are representative of the parent company 
and are not entitled to receive compensation. 
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35. Related party (cont’d) 
 
(d) Key management personnel (Directors) 

 
The number of Directors who received emoluments (excluding pensions and pension contributions) are 
in the following range: 

 
 2024  2023 
Range (N) Number  Number 
0 –   9,999,999 -  - 
10,000,000 – 10,999,999 -  - 
11,000,000 – 11,999,999 -  - 
12,000,000 – 12,999,999 2  2 
13,000,000 – 13,999,999 -  - 
14,000,000 – 14,999,999 -  - 
15,000,000 – 15,999,999 -  - 
16,000,000 – 16,999,999 1  1 

 3  3 

 
36 Guarantee and financial commitments 
 
(a) Bank guarantee 

The Company obtained a bank guarantee amounting to N550 million from United bank of Africa for 
perfection of a Security Trust Deed in respect of loan facilities which it obtained from some Nigerian 
Banks, financial institutions and certain offshore lenders. The maximum exposure to credit risk is 
N550million (2023: N550million) and has a tenor of 12 months which is renewable on yearly basis. 

 
(b) Capital Commitment 

The Company had committed and contracted purchase orders amounting to N98.14billion (2023: 
N78.66billion) as at the reporting date. 

 
(c) Letters of credit (LC) 

The Company has unfunded Letters of Credit amounting to Nil (2023: Nil) and confirmed Letters of Credit 
of nil for the year (2023: N1.2 billion) with various banking institutions in respect of imports. 
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37 Financial instruments  
 

a. Categories of financial instruments and their fair value 
The table below show the carrying amount and fair value of financial instruments by their measurement 

 categories. 
 

 Amortised 
cost 

 Fair value 
through 

profit or loss  

 
Carrying 

value 
 N’000  N’000  N’000 

As at 31 December 2024      
Trade and other receivables (Note 22) 107,295,763   -   107,295,763 
Other financial asset (Note 20) 387,710   -   387,710 
Cash and bank balance 22,381,396   -   22,381,396 

Total financial assets 130,064,869  -  130,064,869 

      
Trade and other payables (Note 33) 465,825,452  -  465,825,452 
Derivative financial liabilities (Note 34)  -     80,648,481  80,648,481 
Interest bearing loans and borrowings (Note 28) 707,419,716  -  707,419,716 

Total financial liabilities 1,173,245,168  80,648,481  1,253,893,649 

 
As at 31 December 2023      
Trade and other receivables (Note 22) 83,264,471   -   83,264,471 
Other financial asset (Note 20) 43,534,571   -   43,534,571 
Cash and bank balance 17,728,107   -   17,728,107 
Derivative financial assets (Note 34)  -     6,333,900  6,333,900 

Total financial assets    144,527,149  6,333,900     150,861,049 

      
Trade and other payables (Note 33) 337,069,342  -  337,069,342 
Derivative financial liabilities (Note 34)  -     132,965,987  132,965,987 
Interest bearing loans and borrowings (Note 28) 348,727,998  -  348,727,998 

Total financial liabilities    685,797,340  132,965,987     818,763,327 
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37. Financial instruments (cont’d) 

 
37.1 Categories of financial instruments and their fair value (cont’d) 

 
The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument 
could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation 
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 

 

• Cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, trade payables and other current liabilities approximate 
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.  
 

• Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate borrowings and/or receivable are evaluated by the Company 
based on parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk factors, and individual 
creditworthiness of the customer and the risk characteristics of the financed project. Based on this 
evaluation, allowances are taken to account for the expected losses of these receivables. As at 31 
December 2024, the carrying amounts of such receivables, net of allowances, are not materially 
different from their calculated fair values. 

 
As at 31 December 2024, the changes in counterparty credit risk had no material effect on the financial 
instruments recognised at fair value. 

 
Fair value hierarchy 
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial 
instruments by valuation technique: 
 
Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
Level 2: Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value 

are observable, either directly or indirectly 
Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 

measurement is unobservable 
 
The Company have measured the below assets at fair value on the statement of financial position.  

 
 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 
At 31 December 2024     
Derivative financial assets -             - - - 

Derivative Financial liabilities 80,648,481              - - 80,648,481 

     
At 31 December 2023     
Derivative financial assets 6,333,900             - 6,333,900 - 

Derivative Financial liabilities        132,965,987    - - 132,965,987 

 
During the reporting period ending 31 December 2024, there were no transfers between Level 1 and 
Level 2 (2023: Nil). The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which 
the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a 
forced or liquidation sale.  
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37.     Financial instruments (cont’d) 

 
37.1  Categories of financial instruments and their fair value (cont’d) 

 
Fair Value (cont’d) 

 
Fair value methods and assumptions 
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values: 

 
Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate borrowings are evaluated by the Company based on parameters 
such as interest rates, specific country risk factors, and the risk characteristics of the financed project.  

 
The Company enters into derivative financial instruments with various counterparties. Interest rate 
swaps and foreign exchange forward contracts are valued using valuation techniques, which employ the 
use of market observable inputs. The most frequently applied valuation techniques include forward 
pricing and swap models using present value calculations. The models incorporate various inputs 
including the credit quality of counterparties, foreign exchange spot and forward rates, yield curves of 
the respective currencies, currency basis spreads between the respective currencies, interest rate curves 
and forward rate curves of the underlying commodity. All derivative contracts are fully cash 
collateralised, thereby eliminating both counterparty risk and the Company’s own non-performance 
risk.  
 
As at 31 December 2024, the marked-to-market value of derivative asset positions is net of a credit 
valuation adjustment attributable to derivative counterparty default risk. The changes in counterparty 
credit risk had no material effect on the hedge effectiveness assessment for derivatives designated in 
hedge relationships and other financial instruments recognised at fair value. 

 
Embedded foreign currency and commodity derivatives are measured similarly to the foreign currency 
forward contracts and commodity derivatives. The embedded derivatives are commodity and foreign 
currency forward contracts which are separated from long-term sales contracts where the transaction 
currency differs from the functional currencies of the involved parties. However, as these contracts are 
not collateralized, the Company also takes into account the counterparties’ credit risks (for the 
embedded derivative assets) or the Company’s own non-performance risk (for the embedded derivative 
liabilities) and includes a credit valuation adjustment or debit value adjustment, as appropriate, by 
assessing the maximum credit exposure and taking into account market-based inputs concerning 
probabilities of default and loss given default. 
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37.       Financial instruments (cont’d) 

 
37.1    Categories of financial instruments and their fair value (cont’d) 

 
  Fair Value (cont’d) 

 

 
The following table describes the key inputs used in the valuation (basis discounted cash flow technique) 
of the level 2 financial assets/liabilities as of 31 December 2024 and 31 December 2023. 

 

Financial assets/liabilities Inputs used 

- Currency swaps, forwards and option contracts, and 
other bank balances 

Forward Forward foreign currency 
exchange rates, interest rates 

-Other financial assets/fixed rate borrowings/Other 
financial liabilities 

Prevailing interest rates in market, future 
payouts, interest rates 

 

Key inputs for level 3 

The fair value of cross currency swap (CCS) has been estimated based on the contractual terms of the 
CCS and parameters such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates etc. Since the data from any 
observable markets in respect of interest rate is not available, the interest rates are considered to be 
significant observable inputs to the valuation of the CCS. 

 

Reconciliation of fair value measurement of derivative assets and liabilities 
 

 

Derivative 
financial 

assets 

 Derivative 
financial 
liabilities 

 Net derivative 
liabilities 

      
 N’000  N’000  N’000 
      
As at 1 January 2023 380,450  (12,879,904)  (12,499,454) 
Recognised in statement of profit or loss 
during the year 5,953,450 

 
(120,086,083) 

 
(114,132,633) 

As at 31 December 2023 6,333,900  (132,965,987)  (126,632,087) 
      
Recognised in statement of profit or loss 
during the year (6,333,900) 

 
52,317,506 

 
45,983,606 

As at 31 December 2024 
 

- 
 

(80,648,481) 
 

(80,648,481) 
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37.       Financial instruments (cont’d) 

 
37.2 Financial risk management 

 
The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables 
and lease liabilities. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations 
and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Company has trade and other receivables, cash 
and short-term deposits that are derived directly from its operations. The Company is exposed to market 
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the management of these 
risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by a risk management committee that advises 
on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The risk 
management committee provides assurance to the Company’s senior management that the Company’s 
financial risk-taking activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial 
risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with Company’s policies and Company’s risk 
appetite. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks which are 
summarised below. 

 
(a) Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise of interest rate risk and foreign currency 
risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, forward foreign 
currency contracts to hedge the exchange rate risk and deposits. The sensitivity analyses in the following 
sections relate to the position as at 31 December in 2024 and 2023. The sensitivity analyses have been 
prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of fixed to floating interest rates of the debt 
and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant. The analyses exclude 
the impact of movements in market variables on the carrying value of provisions and on the non-
financial assets and liabilities. The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the 
assumed changes in respective market risks 

 
Interest rate risk 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market 
interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s long-term debt obligations with changes in interest 
rates. 
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37.2 Financial risk management (cont’d) 
 

Interest rate sensitivity 
The following demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that 
portion of loans and borrowings. Holding other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax 
is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings as follows: 
 

 2024  2023 

 N'000  N'000 
Interest bearing loans and borrowings    
Term loans (with floating interest rate) 323,455,949  220,914,732 
Bank Overdraft 203,981,313  88,816,547 

 527,437,262  309,731,279 

    
Effective Interest Rate 23.79%  11.85% 

 

 
The assumed movement in basis points for interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently 
observable market environment, showing a significantly higher volatility NIBOR in the current year.  

 
Foreign currency risk 
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes 
in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or 
expense is denominated in a different currency from the Company’s functional currency) and financing 
activities. The Company manages its foreign currency risk through derivative financial instruments such 
as interest rate swaps, cash flow hedges and embedded derivatives exchange rate adjustments in 
recognising gains or losses arising from foreign currency. 

 
Foreign currency sensitivity 
The following demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US dollar and Euro 
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Company’s profit before tax (due to changes 
in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities including non-designated foreign currency derivatives). 
The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material.  

 
 
 
 
 
 

Basis point  Strengthening  Weakening 
2024 N'000  N'000 

+1 52,744  (52,744) 
+5 263,719  (263,719) 

    
2023 N'000  N'000 

+1 30,973  (30,973) 
+5 154,866  (154,866) 
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37.2  Financial risk management (cont’d) 
 
(a) Market risk (cont’d) 

 
Exposure to currency risk 
The Company’s transactional exposure to US dollar and Euro was based on the closing amount as 
follows:  
 

  31 December 2024     31 December 2023 

  USD‘000    EUR‘000    USD‘000    EUR‘000  
Financial asset        
Trade and other receivables  38,119  79    48,179  123 
Derivative financial assets -  -   6,655   - 
Bank Balance 7,996    9,826   
        
Financial liability       

 

Borrowings 
(105,798)  - 

 
   

(223,120) 
 - 

Lease liabilities (1,296,110)  -  (316,891)  - 
Trade and other payables (230,367)  (586)  (268,392)  (892) 

Derivative financial liabilities (52,208)  -  (139,701)   - 

Net statement of financial position 
exposure 

 
(1,638,368) 

  
(507)  (883,444) 

  
(769) 

 
        The Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact of currency rates as follows: 
 

  Effect on profit before 
tax 

  N’000 
As at 31 December 2024 USD (5 per cent strengthening) 126,543,497 
 Euro (5 per cent strengthening) 41,382 
 USD (5 per cent weakening) (126,543,497) 
 Euro (5 per cent weakening) (41,382) 

   
As at 31 December 2023 USD (5 per cent strengthening) 42,042,724 
 Euro (5 per cent strengthening) 39,629 
 USD (5 per cent weakening) (42,042,724) 
 Euro (5 per cent weakening) (39,629)    
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37.  Financial instruments (cont’d) 

 
37.2  Financial risk management (cont’d) 
 
(a) Market risk (cont’d) 

 
The following exchange rates were applied during the year: 

 
    Average rate  Closing rate 

 2024 2023  2024 2023 
 N N  N N 
US Dollar 1,567.02 646.75  1,544.75 951.79 
Euro 1,665.66 699.73  1,630.33 1,031.93 

 
(b) Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or 
customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating 
activities (primarily for trade receivables), other financial asset and from financing activities on the part 
of the Company including cash and cash equivalents with banks and financial institutions and other 
financial instruments. At the level of operations, the outstanding debts are continuously monitored in 
each area and taken into account through individual and collective allowances.  

 
Trade receivables 
Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, 
procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of the customer is 
assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in 
accordance with this assessment. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored and credit 
sales to major channel partners are covered by bank guarantees while significant post-paid customers  
are covered by cash deposit.  
 
The Company performs on-going credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition and monitors 
the credit-worthiness of its customers to which it grants credit in its ordinary course of business. The 
gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there 
is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the 
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the 
amount due. Where the financial asset has been written-off, the Company continues to engage in 
enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are 
recognised in profit and loss.  
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37.  Financial instruments (cont’d) 

 
37.2  Financial risk management (cont’d) 

 
(b) Credit risk (cont’d) 

 
At the end of each respective year, the aging of the net trade receivables are as follows: 
 

  2024  2023 

  N’000  N’000 

Net trade receivables   107,295,763  83,264,471 

Cash and Bank Balance  22,381,396  17,728,107 

 
 

 
129,677,159 

 
100,992,578 

 
Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury 
department in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investments of surplus funds are made only with 
designated collection banks and within credit limits assigned to each banks. The limits are set to 
minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through potential failure to  
make payments. 
 

(c) Liquidity risk 
The Company monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a recurring liquidity plan. The Company’s 
objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank 
overdrafts, bank loans, shareholder loans, foreign loans and leases.  

 
The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to 
be low. Access to sources of funding is sufficiently available. The table below summarises the maturity 
profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual payments. 
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37.  Financial instruments (cont’d) 

 

37.2  Financial risk management (cont’d) 
 
(c) Liquidity risk (cont’d) 

 
Total 

On 
demand 

Less than 3 
months 

3 to 12 
months 1 to 3 years 

Greater than 3 
years 

 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 N’000 
       

31 December 2024       
Interconnect 17,178,168 - 14,069,124 3,109,044 - - 
Non-Interconnect 27,073,460  -    27,073,460  -     -     -    
Other Receivables 403,259  -    403,259  -     -     -    
Due from related parties 62,640,876 - 1,157,961 11,385,798 10,019,423 40,077,694 

Net trade receivables 
 

107,295,763 - 42,703,804 14,494,842 10,019,423 40,077,694 
Cash and Bank Balance 22,381,396  -    22,381,396  -    - - 

 
 

129,677,159 - 65,085,200 14,494,842 10,019,423 40,077,694 
       
Interest bearing loans and 
borrowings 707,419,716 - 239,356,689 88,838,292 258,668,662 120,556,073 
Lease liabilities 5,982,921,049 - 115,629,875 346,889,623 994,903,203 4,525,498,348 
Trade and other payables 442,518,001 - 442,518,001 - - - 
Derivative financial 
liabilities 80,648,481 - 80,648,481 -  -    - 
Dividend payable 716,581 - - - 716,581 - 

Total 
 

7,214,223,828 - 878,153,046 435,727,915 1,254,288,446 4,646,054,421 
       
       
31 December 2023       
Interconnect 22,411,992 - 9,648,401 12,763,591 -  -    
Bank USSD 31,840  -    31,840  -  -     -    
Non-Interconnect 22,108,177  22,108,177  -     -   -    
Other Receivables 413,751  -    413,751  -     -     -    
Due from related parties 38,298,711 - 9,442,549 8,145,829 4,142,067 16,568,266 

Net trade receivables 
 

83,264,471 - 41,644,718 20,909,420 4,142,067 16,568,266 
Cash and Bank Balance 17,728,107  -    17,728,107 - - - 

 
 

100,992,578 - 59,372,825 20,909,420 4,142,067 16,568,266 
Interest bearing loans and 
borrowings 348,727,998 - 94,357,988 - 204,370,010 50,000,000 
Lease liabilities 876,303,210 - 58,566,174 175,698,523 289,823,868 352,214,645 
Trade and other payables 324,596,716 - 324,596,716 - - - 
Derivative financial 
liabilities 132,965,987 - - 71,869,588 61,096,399 - 
Dividend payable 716,581 - 716,581 - - - 

Total 
 

1,683,310,492 - 478,237,459 247,568,111 555,290,277 402,214,645 
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37.  Financial instruments (cont’d) 

 
37.2  Financial risk management (cont’d) 
 
(d) Capital risk management 

Capital is the equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the 
Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital 
ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value. The Company manages its capital 
structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions.  
 
The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net 
debt. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings (including loans 
from parent company), trade and other payables, lease liabilities less cash and bank balances. The 
Company is not subject to any minimum capital requirement. 

 

 

2024  2023 
N’000  N’000 

    
Gearing Ratio    
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 707,419,716  348,727,998 
Lease liabilities 2,928,620,682  699,624,459 
Less: cash and bank balances (22,381,396)  (17,728,107) 

Net debt 3,613,659,002  1,030,624,350 

    
Total Equity (398,606,912)  (76,351,427) 

    
Equity and net debt 3,215,141,408  954,272,923 

    
Gearing ratio 112%  108% 

 
38.      Net cash adjustment – statement of cash flow 

 
38.1 Net foreign exchange difference 

 2024  2023 

 N'000  N'000 
 

   
Net foreign exchange differences (Note 13(b)) (571,258,263)  (663,592,844) 
Lease Liability Exchange Difference (Note 31(a)) 161,233,736  225,757,256 
Term Loan Exchange Difference (Note 28(a) and 28(d)) 115,597,876  132,301,203 
Share Holder Loan Exchange Difference (Note 28(b)) 15,372,507  4,907,137 
Effect of foreign exchange on cash and cash equivalent (3,138,190)  (2,518,312) 

 

 
(282,192,334)  (303,145,560) 

 
Other foreign exchange difference relates to exchange difference on trade receivables and payables. 
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38.2 Other Non-Cash Item 

 2024  2023 

 N'000  N'000 
Staff loan re-measurement (Note 12) 13,179  9,800 
Interest on long service award and leave encashment (Note 13) (6,918)  (5,492) 
Lease adjustment (Note 31.1) (498,595)  - 
Right of use cost retirement (Note 19) 308,300  382,899 
Right of use accumulated depreciation retirement (Note 19) (240,054)  (299,834) 
Interest on asset retirement obligation (Note 13) (57,845)  (2,238) 

 
 

(481,933)  85,135 

 
39    Going concern 

 
The Company reported a net loss for the year ended 31 December 2024 of N322.17 billion (2023: Net 
Loss of N253.29 billion). The reported loss was arrived at after taking a hit of N571.26 billion in exchange 
difference. As at that date, the current liabilities exceeded its current assets by N833.20 billion (2023: 
N586.68 billion). There was a foreign exchange loss for the year which is due to a depreciation of the 
Naira from N951.79/$ in December 2023 to N1,544.75/$ in December 2024. Total foreign exchange loss 
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2024 is N571.26 billion (2023: N663.59 billion). 
 
Management continued its growth initiatives for the future quarters / years through renewed 
sustainability of the non-voice revenue growth by the acquisition of 5G spectrum which was launched in 
mid-2023 and extending its 4G services across Nigeria during the financial year which has improved the 
revenue growth of the Company. There was the introduction of a separate product line to focus on data 
and to capitalise on the expanding 4G network. Extensive media campaigns to enhance market visibility 
in an effort to grow market share was also adopted. Cost saving optimization strategies initiated by the 
Company are also still in place to ensure consistent growth in EBITDA. The Company hopes to continue 
to leverage on these advantages, as well as explore additional initiatives to further drive down cost and 
increase profitability. 
 
As at 31 December 2024, the Company has N73.5billion credit line comprising the overdraft facilities with 
local banks and $160 million with foreign banks which it could access and all the long-term loans of the 
Company have been guaranteed either by the Company’s All Assets Debenture or the holding company 
(BAIN). The Company also has a $300 million shareholder loan commitment from the holding company 
that is undrawn and is available for drawdown. 
 
The financial statements are prepared on the basis that the Company will continue as a going concern. 
The Company continues to have the support of the holding company through the loan facilities 
mentioned above and the realization of assets and settlement of liabilities will occur in the ordinary 
course of business. The cash flow assessment for the next twelve (12) months indicates that the Company 
will be able to generate sufficient cash to maintain the operations and service current debt obligations.  
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40 Information relating to employees 

 
(a) The average number of persons in the Company’s employment at the end of the financial year was as 

follows: 
 

     2024  2023 
     Number  Number 
        
CEO’s office and corporate affairs     44  35 
Engineering /operation     131  127 
Sales and marketing     418  424 
Customer experience     33  35 
Information systems     38  44 
Human resources     13  16 
Finance     48  54 

     725  735 

 
(b) Employees of the Company, other than directors, whose duties were wholly or mainly discharged in 

Nigeria, received remuneration (excluding pension contributions) in the following ranges: 
 

     2024  2023 
Range (N)     Number  Number 
        
Less than – N5,000,000     50  161 
N5,000,001- N10,000,000     178  156 
N10,000,001-  N15,000,000     126  136 
N15,000,001- N20,000,000     107  101 
N20,000,001 and above     264  181 

     725  735 

 
41 Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets 

 
As at 31 December 2024, the Company had contingent liabilities of N4.89 billion (2023: N4.89 billion) in 
respect of legal cases. No provision has been made in these financial statements as management does 
not consider that there is a probable loss.  
 
There was no contingent asset as at 31 December 2024 (2023: NIL). 

 
42 Regulatory Sanctions - Nigerian Communications Act of 2003 

 
In compliance with the directive of the Nigerian Communication Commission (NCC), pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 53(1) of the Nigerian Communication Act 2003, there were no sanctions on the 
Company during the year 2024 (2023: NIL). 
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43 Subscriber base 

 2024  2023 
 Numbers  Numbers 
 ‘000  ‘000 
 

   
Opening subscriber base 61,834  60,066 
Net subscriber connection added / reduction during the year (4,151)  1,768 

Closing subscriber base 
 

57,683  
 

61,834 

 
Active subscribers are determined based on a 90-day revenue generating cycle. 

 
44 Segment reporting 

 
The Company carries out its operations entirely in Nigeria which is considered one geographical segment. 
Based on the scope of IFRS 8, the Company does not have publicly traded instruments. Accordingly, no 
operating segment information is presented. 

 
45 Events after the balance sheet date 

 
No events or transactions have occurred since the balance sheet date which would have a material effect 
on the financial statements as at period ended 31 December 2024. 

 
46 Reclassification of prior year balances 

 
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified for consistency with the current period presentation. 
These reclassifications had no effect on the reported results of operations in prior year.  
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Value Added Statement  

 
The value-added statement represents the wealth created through the efforts of the Company and its 
employees, and the distribution of created wealth amongst various interest groups.  
 
 
 

 
  2024  2023  

   N’000  %  N’000  % 
Revenue    1,467,125,262    1,088,075,287   
           
Bought-in-materials and services           

- Local 
 

  
       

(814,070,729)    (1,145,726,000)   
-Imported    (163,533,150)    (27,217,125)   

 
Value added by operating activities    

 
                                

489,521,383    (84,867,838)   

           
Non trading items:           
Other income    5,535,633    5,109,621   
Finance income    827,763    1,463,850   

 
Value Added    

 
     
495,884,779  100  (78,294,367)  100 

           
Applied as follows:           
           
To pay employees’ salaries, wages and fringe benefits 27,745,489  6  20,964,238  (27) 
To pay providers of capital – interest    340,962,609  70  94,641,847  (121) 
Current taxation    314,043,069  63  27,840,628  (36) 
Deferred Tax    (157,255,093)  (32)  (159,349,036)  204 
To provide for depreciation of fixed assets    95,427,668  19  73,286,651  (94) 
To provide for depreciation of right of use assets 164,758,959  34  89,201,454  (114) 
To provide for amortisation of intangible assets   32,368,341  6  28,411,586  (36) 
(Loss)/Profit sustained/retained for operations  (322,166,263)  (66)  (253,291,735)  324 

           
Value Added    495,884,779  100  (78,294,367)  100 
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     a 

 2024  2023  2022  2021  2020 
 N’million  N’million  N’million  N’million  N’million 
Statement of Comprehensive Income          
          
Revenue from operations  1,467,125    1,088,075   893,889  734,819  575,910 

          
Gross profit  813,747    640,046   515,021  443,000  347,847 

          
EBITDA 732,372  436,600  362,320  346,145  273,447 

          
Profit/(Loss) before taxation (471,583)  (384,800)  213,918  251,527  185,114 
Taxation 149,417  131,508  (67,714)  (80,842)  (53,742) 

Profit/(Loss) for the year 
 

(322,166)  
 

(253,292)  
 

146,204  170,685  131,372 

          
Statement of financial position          
Property, plant and equipment  708,439    536,840   420,622      385,340       322,168  
Right of use 2,373,306  367,020  344,306     172,038      114,760  
Intangible assets 231,977   263,765   233,508     106,445      46,758  
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) 313,239  155,984  (3,366)       23,405         63,171  
Derivative financial assets -  -  -  169   
Investment in subsidiary 13,175  5,050  5,050   50    50  
Other Non-current assets 35,910  32,821  17,053  5,431   6,995  
Net current liabilities (833,197)  (586,681)  (359,119)  (145,516)  (94,561) 
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 
(non-current) (377,416)  (254,370)  (91,879)  (20,533)  (27,140) 
Employee benefits liability (non-current) (11)  (14)  (16)  (55)  (41) 
Deferred revenue - (non-current) (231)  (651)  (606)  (131)   (149)  
Provisions (non-current) (122)  (44)  (41)  (39)  (37) 
Derivative financial liabilities -  (61,096)  (10,173)  (1,551)  - 
Finance leases obligation (non-current) (2,863,588)  (534,977)  (378,399)  (228,477)  (184,239) 

Net assets (398,519)  (76,353)  176,940  
        

296,576  
          

247,736 

          
Equity           
Share capital 13,287  13,287  13,287  13,287  4,127 
Treasury Shares (67,554)  (67,554)  (67,553)  (67,554)  - 
Share premium 67,235  67,235  67,235  67,235  67,235 
Retained earnings/(loss) (411,487)  (89,321)  163,971  283,608  176,374 

Equity attributable to owners of the 
Company 

         
(398,519)  (76,353)  176,940  296,576  247,736 

          
Earnings/(loss) per share:          
-       Basic (N26.42)  (N20.77)  N11.99  N12.93  N9.89 

          
-       Diluted (N26.42)  (N20.77)  N11.99  N12.93  N9.89 

 
 
 


